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KOMPANION MISSION AND GOALS
Kompanion’s mission is to be the leading community development financial
institution in Central Asia.
KOMPANION GOALS:

Foster the growth of small businesses and
promote social entrepreneurship
Help customers build healthy, financially stable
communities
Promote natural resources conservation and
good management practices to our customers
and communities
Measure success based on impact evaluation
Lead social enterprise innovation in Central Asia
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LEADERSHIP MESSAGE
Dear partners and friends!
For us, the past year was marked with a range of significant qualitative transformations aimed at
improving Kompanion as a reliable community development financial institution in Central Asia.
European investors with high long-term credit rating AAA joined the Kompanion’s shareholders,
which became one of the most important events for the Bank. Attraction of direct Dutch investments
to the country’s financial sector is very important not only for Kompanion but generally for economy
of Kyrgyzstan too.
In 2015, we took a significant step on our way of implementing the Company’s development
strategy. Due to commitment to work and high professionalism of Kompanion’s employees, we
accomplished the greater part of the work on preparation for transformation into a banking
institution. As a result, on October 7, 2015 the National Bank of the Kyrgyz Republic made a ruling
to issue a preliminary consent to open a Kompanion Bank CJSC. On November 20, 2015 Kompanion
Financial Group Microfinance CJSC was re-registered with the Ministry of Justice of the Kyrgyz
Republic and was renamed as Kompanion Bank CJSC.
Established in 2004 as a microcredit company, Kompanion has passed through all stages of
institutional development. Today Kompanion is a sound financial organization with assets amounting
to KGS 6.2 billion and charter capital of KGS 1 billion 600 thousand. From the date of establishment,
we have significantly expanded our geographic reach in Kyrgyzstan’s market. As of now, we have
108 outlets across the country, 113 thousand clients and 900 employees.
We succeeded in reaching such strong performance only due to trust of our clients and partners,
support and assistance from our shareholders and investors and high expertise of our employees,
who make indispensable contribution to Kompanion’s development.
We appreciate our long-term experience on the financial market and are proud of our history with
unchallenged reputation. We are moving to a new level of development and we invite our clients,
partners and employees to join!

Sincerely,
Ulanbek Termechikov
Chief Executive Officer
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SELECTED FINANCIAL SUMMARY
2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

8,591

12,221

21,803

40,326

70,812

99,386

119,396

137,310

116,719

108,596

115,167

113,332

LOAN PORTFOLIO
(KGS MLN1)

132

158

272

768

1,119

1,330

1,959

2,764

2,600

4,010

4,739

4,415

PORTFOLIO
AT RISK

0.9%

0.8%

0.4%

0.2%

0.5%

0,5%

0.3%

0.3%

0.9%

0.3%

0.7%

1.4%

# OF STAFF

151

138

173

503

801

835

929

1,038

1,062

915

823

903

# OF OFFICES

32

29

42

56

81

82

92

157

161

141

124

108

TOTAL CLIENTS

CAGR (COMPOUND AVERAGE GROWTH RATE2)

TOTAL LOAN
PORTFOLIO

CLIENTS

27%

# OF STAFF

17%

39%
# OF OFFICES

13%

1 - Exchange rate of NBKR as of December 31, 2015 constituted 75.8993 KGS to 1 USD
2 - CAGR - Compound Average Growth Rate, calculated as
((Portfolio 2015 / Portfolio 2004) ^ (1/10)-1)
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SELECTED FINANCIAL SUMMARY
NET OPERATING INCOME AND NET INCOME (KGS 000s)
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OUR SHAREHOLDERS
ATTRACTING DIRECT DUTCH INVESTMENTS TO ECONOMY OF KYRGYZSTAN
In March 2015 Kompanion Financial Group Microfinance CJSC moved to a new level of development
increasing its equity from KGS 650.4 mln. to KGS 1 bln. 616 ths. European investors become the
members of the company’s shareholders’ structure. The new shareholders are represented by an
international financial credit institution and funds of the Netherlands and Luxembourg with social
and innovative focus. Attraction of direct Dutch investments to economy of Kyrgyzstan became a
very important stage of development not only for the company but for the country’s entire financial
sector too. Kompanion took a significant step for establishing long-term economic relationships
between Kyrgyzstan and the Netherlands, and the company plans to actively strengthen and
develop them in future.

MERCY CORPS
Kompanion’s founder—Mercy Corps, an international non-governmental organization for economic development and aid—remains the main shareholder holding
65% of shares. The organization has been operating in Kyrgyzstan since 1994, implementing a number of national and regional programs aimed at building healthy
and financially stable communities based on principles of a civil society.

TRIODOS SICAV II - TRIODOS MICROFINANCE FUND
Triodos Sicav II - Triodos Microfinance Fund (TMF), an investment fund, was established in March 2009 as a sub-fund of Triodos SICAV II. The fund deals with
investments in financial services for low-income people in developing countries. The fund’s assets amount to approximately EUR 200 mln. Triodos SICAV II is
supervised by the Netherlands Authority for Financial Markets.
Through the increase of shares, Triodos SICAV II holds 8.75% of Kompanion’s shares with the total investment amount of KGS 122,068,250.
TRIODOS FAIR SHARE FUND
Triodos Fair Share Fund (TFSF), an investment fund, was established in 2002. Its assets amount to more than EUR 2 mln. The Fund finances microfinance institutions
in developing countries through provision of loans and participation in share capitals of banks and microfinance organizations. TFSF is the first investment fund to
be awarded an official status of a socially ethical investment institution in accordance with Dutch law requirements to social and ethical investments.
Triodos Fair Share Fund holds 8.75% of shares with the total investment amount of KGS 122,068,250.
FMO (DUTCH DEVELOPMENT BANK)
The Dutch development bank (FMO) was established in 1970 in Hague, the Netherlands. The government represented by the Dutch
Ministry of Finance holds 51% of shares in FMO’s capital structure. Large Dutch banks, various institutions and individuals hold the
remaining 49%. The Bank’s assets amount to EUR 6.4 bln. FMO received the international credit rating ААА.
FMO’s core business includes provision of loans, guarantees and capital to private sector enterprises in developing countries.
The Bank’s efforts are focused in the following sectors: financial institutions, energy and agriculture, food security and drinking water
supply.
Through the increase of the company’s shares, FMO holds 17.5% of shares with the total investment amount of KGS 244,136,500.
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LOAN PRODUCTS
In 2015, the activities of Kompanion were focused on the process of transformation into a Bank for purposes of successful entry and further functioning in the
banking market. Obtaining a banking license is the opportunity to strengthen its influence in the community development by means of broadening the spectrum
of products and services. The target segment of customers has been also broadened- small and medium sized companies have joined the list of priority customers,
which can affect the local economy on a systematic level. In order to satisfy the needs of the new segment the new products have been developed and the existing
ones have been improved. For purposes of starting new loans, new business processes have been developed and introduced, and new employees have been hired
and trained.

AT THE END OF 2015, THE CREDIT PORTFOLIO OF THE GROUP
BASED LENDING WAS EQUALED TO KGS 3,611,447,921.
AND THE CREDIT PORTFOLIO OF THE INDIVIDUAL LENDING
WAS EQUALED TO KGS 779,986,610.
Business Development Loans
For purposes of supporting the small and medium sized businesses, a loan product “Ishker” has been introduced, which allows the entrepreneurs to develop their
own businesses by investing in the equipment, commercial real estate, industrial premises, and also financing the floating capital. In 2015, 46 loans for the amount
of KGS 100 880 000 were given.
For the micro entrepreneurs, who have no way of lodging a security for the loan with movable property or real estate, the micro loan without security deposit
“Jenil” has been developed under a private individual’s guarantee. From the start in October of 2015 to the end of 2015 more than 500 micro loans of “Jenil” have
been given.

Women Entrepreneurship
At the Kompanion, a great attention is paid for lending to the women entrepreneurs. In 2015 72% of our customers were women. Predominantly, these are women,
who got group based micro loans. However, the ratio of women managers and owners of larger businesses is not big, and they need for an additional support.
At the end of 2014, the special loan “Aiym-Invest” has been introduced to assist the women entrepreneurs, who are actively engaged in small and medium sized
businesses. The loan is given at reduced rates for buying equipment and also for other investment purposes. By the end of 2015, 22 women entrepreneurs have
become active customers with the credit portfolio of KGS 7,4mln.

Housing Loans
Understanding that the housing problems are the important aspect of community development, the Kompanion has defined the housing financing as one of its
strategic direction of lending. At the end of 2014 it was developed, and in 2015 the product line of housing financing “Ak-Orgo” was presented. The product line
includes loans for purchase, improvement and construction of housing. The credit portfolio for the reporting year was more than 70 KGS mln.
In 2015, the Kompanion continued lending at reduced rates from the returned funds of the “Housing financing” Program jointly with the German Development
Bank (KFW). At the end of 2015, the credit portfolio of “Housing financing” was KGS 133, 6 mln.

Financing Rural Areas
The Kompanion is participating in the Program of German Development Bank (KFW) “Financing businesses in rural regions.” The goal of the Program is to increase
the well-being of the population in the rural regions of Kyrgyzstan. Within the frames of the program, the funds in the amount of 1 mln Euros were allocated to
the Kompanion for the period of six years. In 2015 all of the funds were disbursed by allowing the rural area residents to get loans for business development.
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
Kompanion is the only microfinance organization in Kyrgyzstan that has a technical assistance
department. Consisting of 32 highly qualified agronomists and livestock specialists, Kompanion’s
unique integrated approach provides a blend of financial products and business development
services, and allows clients to increase their crop and livestock productivity using an ethno-ecological
approach to the management of natural resources and business assets.
In 2015 more than 12,600 active clients received free-of-charge consultations on development of
agricultural business.
SMART INVESTMENTS
In order to strengthen the integration of financial products and business development services, the
development team has developed and implemented the “smart investments” concept, which means
clear and concise investment business ideas followed by descriptive technical materials that reflect
the backbone of the idea and provide basic calculations of return on investment. Such business
ideas illustrate clients’ possible economic benefits from agricultural business.
Not only does a Kompanion’s client receive funds, but he/she is also provided with information on
how to use cost-effective agricultural practices, how to improve production and marketing, and
business methods that require minimum contribution of human and financial capital and result
in increased earnings, greater crop yields, production scale-up, and increased food security. This
allows clients to develop their businesses and reduce the influence of unfavourable events on their
households.
MARKET PRICE MONITORING SYSTEM
Since 2012, the market price monitoring system has allowed us to track prices for a basket of
agricultural products (livestock, seeds, meat, vegetables, fruits) in large markets throughout the
country on a monthly basis. Based on this information Kompanion’s clients make more profitable
decisions with regard to sales of their products in various regions. Market prices are analyzed and
distributed to clients in all Kompanion offices.
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DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVES
DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVES FOR COMMUNITIES
Kompanion’s development team provides the opportunity for vulnerable communities in remote
regions to complete an annual training in Farmer Field School in two directions: Ecogarden (agronomy)
and Livestock Management (animal husbandry). Kompanion’s specialists help households manage
business assets (household plots, livestock) and natural resources (summer and winter pastures, water
resources). By applying received knowledge and acquired skills, households can improve their crop
quality and increase livestock yields, leading to increases in their incomes. Kompanion’s specialists
conducted 12,300 initiative trainings over the past five years attended by 31,655 households from 725
villages of Kyrgyzstan.
EVENTS FOR COMMUNITIES
Training development initiatives are accompanied by annual huge mobilization events in the rural
areas. Kompanion conducts agricultural fairs, Ayil Alga development festivals, and the traditional Apple
Festival. We invite producers and buyers of agricultural products, representatives of biolaboratories,
nurseries, owners of pedigree cattle, and processors to an open platform to conclude mutually
beneficial contracts and establish direct market connections. The main goal of these events is to
foster development of agriculture and market connections for strengthening the economic capacity
of communities.
IMPACT MEASUREMENT SYSTEM
The Impact Measurement System (IMS) is an integrated system of indicators that allows measuring and
evaluating the impact of financial and development services upon households and clients’ businesses,
as well as tracking and understanding the influence of the company’s activities on households’ selfsustainability and on the promotion of financial integration. IMS was developed and implemented
by Kompanion’s specialists. It is a unique data management tool. The system allows automated
and regular collection of data using mobile devices, storage of data in a centralized database, and
data analysis by means of various analytical and statistical methods. Based on collected IMS data,
Kompanion’s financial and development services have a favourable impact upon rural communities.
BASED ON THE RESULTS OF THE SURVEY FOR 2014-2015
Rate of households

Increased their income level:

Increased their consumption level:

Increased their savings:

Clients

43%

40 %

32,56%

Participants of development initiatives

43%

46%

58,61%
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CLIENTS SUCCESS STORIES
Hard-working people succeed in all their endeavours!
Berizat Imanalieva has been cooperating with Kompanion since 2005. She is taking her thirteenth loan and is
successfully developing her business. In 2005, Berizat learned from her co-workers that Kompanion offered
loans for development of agricultural business to residents of her village. At that time Berizat and her husband
Melis had a small cattle farm, but they had to sell all the cattle, for their three sons were growing up and
they needed money for education. Then the couple made a decision to take a group loan to buy a cow. In
a year’s time, the family successfully repaid the loan and took another one to buy a horse and build a shed.
The cattle were producing offspring, and the family’s income was gradually increasing. The family planted an
apple garden. Melis actively consulted with Kompanion’s agronomist, because the family did not have access
to other sources of information on how to look after dwarf trees. The agronomist’s recommendations on
tree trimming and pest control were useful and effective. The family started to receive regular income selling
apples, milk and meat.

«SOMETIMES I CANNOT BELIEVE THAT SUCH
THINGS DO REALLY HAPPEN. WE LIVED IN A
SMALL ROOM MADE OF SUN-DRIED BRICKS
BEFORE. NOW WE HAVE A HUGE HOUSE!»
Thanks to proper planning of the family’s expenses and financial literacy knowledge, which the couple received
from Kompanion too, the family was able to increase income and build a good-quality house.
«Sometimes I cannot believe that such things do really happen. We lived in a small room made of sundried bricks before. Now we have a huge house!» Berizat shared when proudly taking us over her house.
«A veterinarian from Kompanion recommended that we invest a part of the money from the recent loan in
the purchase of beehives and start a bee-keeping business,» Melis added. «I decided to give it a try, bought
some beehives and placed them in the garden. It is useful for pollination of the garden, and the honey is so
delicious. We eat the honey at home and sell it on the market too at 350 soms per kilo. I ended up being so
much involved in the bee raising process that I want to expand the new business and buy ten more beehives,»
he continued on his future plans.
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CLIENTS SUCCESS STORIES
Cage housing of laying hens — example of a successful business
Nazgul Sydygalieva is a successful entrepreneur and mother of five children. She took her first loan at the Kompanion as early as in 2005 to pay her senior son’s
tuition. In 2015 she found out that the specialists of Kompanion provide the real business plans, and also technical support and recommendations of agronomists
and veterinarians. Besides, all the information about the suppliers of necessary equipment and breed livestock farm is provided for the beginning businessmen.

«HOW TO BUILD A HENHOUSE, WHAT KIND OF LAYING HENS SHOULD BE KEPT TO

GET THE MAXIMUM PROFIT, WHAT IS THE ADVANTAGE OF BREEDING THE CHICKEN IN
CELLS, I LEARNED ABOUT ALL THIS FROM THE KOMPANION SPECIALISTS»

«How to build a henhouse, what kind of laying hens should be kept to get the maximum profit, what is the advantage of breeding the chicken in cells, I learned
about all this from the Kompanion specialists.” Nazgul told her success story. «On second thought, I decided to try starting a business and took a loan. I was right
about it. The hens started laying eggs in the fourth month. I collect 300 eggs in a day and sell myself at the local market or to the nearest shops. Also we give
some eggs to the large stores of the capital to sell. My younger sons help me a lot with the chicken farming. I dreamt of putting all of my five kids on their feet,
and give them worthy education. My dream came true thanks to the good business plan and additional income from the cage housing of laying hens,” the strong
woman shared about her success.
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CLIENTS SUCCESS STORIES
Sheep breeding by the example of a home mini farm
Jazdagul Borbukova is Kompanion’s client, an entrepreneur and a mother of three. When her family started to experience shortage of money, Jazdagul made
a decision to start a business of sheep fattening and breeding. Her family had a shed by that time. They needed investments to buy cattle. In 2014, Jazdagul’s
husband learned from his colleagues that Kompanion not only provided funds but gave free-of-charge consultations on livestock production too. Jazdagul reached
out to Kompanion’s experts who helped her calculate potential expenses for purchase of cattle and feed and provided information about cattle feeding diet and
standards of preparing animals for grazing. Being impressed by a serious approach of Kompanion’s experts, Jazdagul took a loan for purchase of sheep. In a year’s
time, sheep produced offspring. The flock of sheep increased almost twofold. By that time Jazdagul had already repaid her first loan. She took a repeat loan in 2015
to expand her business. In 2016, taking a cue from Kompanion’s veterinarian, she is preparing her flock for grazing on remote pastures.

«I’M PROUD THAT BEING ONLY 30 I HAVE MY OWN BUSINESS,
EVEN THOUGH IT’S SMALL THAT BRINGS REGULAR INCOME»
«I’m proud that being only 30 I have my own business, even though it’s small that brings regular income. Besides, my children become used to work diligently from
a young age. My eldest son (he is 12), already helps me feed sheep,» Jazdagul shares with a smile.
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CLIENTS SUCCESS STORIES
Apricot garden – beautiful and profitable!
Alybaev Duishonbu, who holds a degree in Economics, purchased a land plot and planted apricot seedlings
in 2008. After several years, but the garden neither bore fruit nor brought expected income for the farmer.
There was nobody to ask for advice about how to plant, how to water and take care of a garden. When the
Kompanion specialist formed a group of 15 farmers to conduct the annual free training in 2015, Duishonbu
took this opportunity gladly and regularly attended the initiative trainings in the field school of farmers. The
Kompanion agronomist gave useful theoretical lessons and conducted practical classes in the gardens of
the each participant by turn. Duishonbu’s mistakes that he made while he was planting the seedlings were
also analyzed in the classes. He made too small seedbeds on the stony land, planted the seedlings too close
to each other, and bought the seedlings at the market in Chui region. The seedlings were not adapted to
the local conditions.

«I THINK I WILL USE THE NEXT LOAN TO
BUY THE DRIP IRRIGATION EQUIPMENT.
IT WILL ALLOW REDUCTION OF WATER
CONSUMPTION AND LABOR EFFORTS
AND WILL IMPROVE THE QUALITY AND
QUANTITY OF MY CROP»
Having gained new knowledge of how to manage a garden, as well as tree trimming and grafting skills, the
farmer received his first loan in Kompanion and bought 50 more seedlings from a local nursery. Duishonbu
successfully repaid his first loan and boldly invested the borrowed funds in planting the next batch of trees
(40 pieces) in 2016. There are not only apricots on his land plot now, but apple trees, cherries, currants and
raspberries too. His whole family is engaged in working the land. Duishonbu drew his brother’s family in the
work too, thus allowing them to receive additional income.
After careful consideration and planning, the businessman decided: “I think I will use the next loan to
buy the drip irrigation equipment. It will allow reduction of water consumption and labor efforts and will
improve the quality and quantity of my crop.»
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CLIENTS SUCCESS STORIES
Drip Irrigation System: economical and convenient!
The family of Abdil Sydygaliev has always been ranching: breeding horses, cows and sheep. Early in life
everything was easy, but with aging, managing the farmstead got more difficult. The senior brother told
Abdil about Kompanion, which conducts free trainings on agriculture and funds businesses.
«In 2011, I attended the training on orchard management for the first time and met with the Kompanion
agronomist,” Abdil Sydygaliev started his story. «The trainings were very interesting; everything was explained
in plain and simple language. I have never been interested in agriculture before. But the Kompanion
agronomist was telling about the profit of horticulture, variety of wood types, benefits of healthy eating for
children and grandchildren, advantages of new technologies, such as the drip irrigation so passionately, that
I started dreaming of having my own garden,” remembered Abdil.

«IN 2011, I ATTENDED THE TRAINING ON
ORCHARD MANAGEMENT FOR THE FIRST
TIME AND MET WITH THE KOMPANION
AGRONOMIST»

«In 2011, I attended the training on orchard management for the first time and met with the Kompanion
agronomist,” Abdil Sydygaliev started his story. «The trainings were very interesting; everything was explained
in plain and simple language. I have never been interested in agriculture before. But the Kompanion
agronomist was telling about the profit of horticulture, variety of wood types, benefits of healthy eating
for children and grandchildren, advantages of new technologies, such as the drip irrigation so passionately,
that I started dreaming of having my own garden,” remembered Abdil.
In 2014 the prospective gardener sold some of his cattle, and also got a loan. He spent half of the money
for the construction of a land plot fence to protect the seedlings from cattle. The other half of the funds
was spent for cultivation of land, well-sinking, purchase and installation of the drip irrigation system with a
water tank of 6 ton volume. Following the advices of the agronomist, the farmer bought seedlings. Now the
family of Abdil has its own garden: 500 apple saplings are planted on one hectare of land. There will be the
first harvest and income in just a couple of years!
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KOMPANION BANK CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY
(FORMERLY KOMPANION FINANCIAL GROUP MICROFINANCE CJSC)
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE PREPARATION AND APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Kompanion Bank
Closed Joint Stock Company (formerly Kompanion Financial Group Microfinance Closed Joint Stock Company) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) as at 31 December 2015, and
the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for:
• properly selecting and applying accounting policies;
• presenting information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information;
• providing additional disclosures when compliance with IFRS requirements are insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events
and conditions on the Group’s consolidated financial position and financial performance; and
• making an assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Management is also responsible for:
• designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and sound system of internal controls, throughout the Group;
• maintaining accounting records that are sufficient to disclose and explain the Group’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the consolidated
financial position of the Group, and which enable them to ensure that the consolidated financial statements of the Group comply with IFRS requirements;
• maintaining accounting records in compliance with the legislation of the Kyrgyz Republic;
• taking such steps that are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Group; and
• preventing and detecting financial and other irregularities.
The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 were approved by the Group’s management on 3 March 2016.

On behalf of the Management:

Ulanbek Termechikov
Chairman
of the Management Board

Gulbara Djakypbaeva
Chief accountant

3 March 2016
Bishkek, Kyrgyz Republic

16

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of
Kompanion Bank CJSC
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Kompanion Bank CJSC (formerly Kompanion Financial Group
Microfinance CJSC) and its subsidiaries (“Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015,
and the consolidated income statement and statement of other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Kompanion Bank CJSC
(formerly Kompanion Financial Group Microfinance CJSC) and its subsidiary as at 31 December 2015, and its financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.
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Other matter
The consolidated financial statements of Kompanion Bank CJSC (formerly Kompanion Financial Group Microfinance CJSC) and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 December 2014, were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 16 March 2015.

Evgeny Zhemaletdinov
Partner

Elizaveta Tsoy
Auditor / General director
Ernst & Young Audit LLC
A Qualification Certificate of the auditor № 00098 as of 28 February 2006
3 March 2016
Bishkek, Kyrgyz Republic

License to perform audit activities series А
№ 0036 as of 20 February 2010 issued by the State
Service for Financial Market Regulation and
Supervision under the Government of Kyrgyz
Republic
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KOMPANION BANK CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT AND STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

Interest income
Interest expenses
NET INTEREST INCOME BEFORE CHARGE ON ALLOWANCE FOR
IMPAIRMENT ON INTEREST BEARING ASSETS
Charge on allowance for impairment on interest bearing assets

NOTES

YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER
2015

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2014

7, 23

1,671,875

1,463,901

7

(493,863)

(416,562)

1,178,012

1,047,339

(87,706)

(61,806)

1,090,306

985,533

(298,774)

(249,751)

26,684

12,829

–

203

(5,183)

(5,565)

16,433

14,063

(260,840)

(228,221)

829,466

757,312

(786,026)

(682,406)

8

NET INTEREST INCOME
ss
Net foreign exchange gain

9

Reversal of allowance for impairment of other assets impairment
Fee and commission expenses
Net other income

23

NET NON-INTEREST EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME
OPERATING EXPENSES

10

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

43,440

74,906

(7,659)

(13,118)

35,781

61,788

35,781

61,788

–

–

35,781

61,788

–

–

35,781

61,788

- shareholders of the Bank

35,781

61,788

- non-controlling interests

–

–

35,781

61,788

Income tax expense
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ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
- shareholders of the Bank

- non-controlling interests
Other comprehensive income
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

Signed and authorised for release on behalf of the Management Board of the Bank:

Ulanbek Termechikov
Chairman
of the Management Board

Gulbara Djakypbaeva
Chief accountant

3 March 2016
Bishkek, Kyrgyz Republic
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KOMPANION BANK CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015
(in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)
NOTES

YEAR ENDE D
31 DECEMBER 2015

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2014*

ASSETS
Amounts due from banks and other financial institutions

12

1,317,656

645,692

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

15

443,700

453,254

Loans to customers

13

4,101,038

4,475,121

Property and equipment and intangible assets

14

342,700

321,264

Deferred income tax asset

11

8,884

–

Other assets

16

51,219

52,256

6,265,197

5,947,587

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Amounts due to banks and other financial institutions

17

4,584,664

4,908,046

Subordinated debt

19

62,796

47,501

11,359

1,246

Current income tax liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities

11

–

1,570

Other liabilities

18

275,909

214,778

4,934,728

5,173,141

1,000,616

650,400

Share premium

177,150

–

Retained earnings

152,701

124,044

1,330,467

774,444

2

2

Total equity

1,330,469

774,446

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

6,265,197

5,947,587

Total liabilities
EQUITY
Share capital

21

Total equity attributable to shareholders of the Parent
Non-controlling interest

* Certain amounts given in this column are not consistent with amounts in the consolidated financial statements for 2014 as they reflect the
reclassifications made as disclosed in Note 6.
Signed and authorised for release on behalf of the Management Board of the Bank:

Ulanbek Termechikov
Chairman
of the Management Board

Gulbara Djakypbaeva
Chief accountant

3 March 2016
Bishkek, Kyrgyz Republic
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KOMPANION BANK CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

SHARE
CAPITAL

SHARE
PREMIUM

RETAINED EARNINGS

NON-CONTROLLING
INTEREST

TOTAL
EQUITY

650,400

–

75,604

2

726,006

–

–

61,788

–

61,788

Other comprehensive income for the year

–

–

–

–

–

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

-

–

61,788

–

61,788

Dividends declared (Note 21)

–

–

(13,348)

–

(13,348)

650,400

–

124,044

2

774,446

–

–

35,781

–

35,781

Other comprehensive income for the year

–

–

–

–

–

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

–

–

35,781

–

35,781

Dividends declared (Note 21)

–

–

(7,124)

–

(7,124)

350,216

177,150

–

–

527,366

1,000,616

177,150

152,701

2

1,330,469

31 December 2013

31 December 2014

Issue of common shares (Note 21)
31 December 2015

Signed and authorised for release on behalf of the Management Board of the Bank:

Ulanbek Termechikov
Chairman
of the Management Board

Gulbara Djakypbaeva
Chief accountant

3 March 2016
Bishkek
Kyrgyz Republic
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KOMPANION BANK CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY
(formerly Kompanion Financial Group Microfinance CJSC)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)
NOTES

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation

Adjustments:
Charge on allowance for impairment on interest bearing assets
Reversal of allowance for impairment on other assets
Accrued operating expenses
Unrealized foreign exchange gain
Net unrealised loss/(income) from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Depreciation and amortisation
Loss from disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Net change in accrued interest income and expense
Cash flows from operating activities before changes in operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in operating assets
Amounts due from banks and other financial institutions
Loans to customers
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Other assets
Decrease/(increase) in operating liabilities
Other liabilities
Cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities before taxation
Income tax paid
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities

8
8

YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER
2015

YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER
2014*

43,440

74,906

87,706
–
51,770
(31,687)
11,555
38,176
443
(4,624)
196,779

61,806
(203)
34,108
(12,829)
(4,366)
38,570
1,568
(54,871)
138,689

1,080
304,884
680,031
6,868

8,886
(655,810)
358,723
6,730

8,676
1,198,318
(8,000)
1,190,318

(10,998)
(153,780)
(5,901)
(159,681)
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KOMPANION BANK CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY
(formerly Kompanion Financial Group Microfinance CJSC)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 (in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

NOTES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment and intangible assets

YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER
2015

YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER
2014*

(65,887)

(44,811)

–

1,844

(65,887)

(42,967)

649,714

2,620,291

(1,770,194)

(2,034,476)

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Net cash flows used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from banks and other financial institutions
Repayment of amounts due to banks and other financial institutions
Proceeds from increase in share capital

21

527,366

–

Dividends paid

21

(7,124)

(14,089)

(600,238)

571,726

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

147,352

46,413

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

671,545

415,491

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning

12

626,850

211,359

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ending

12

1,298,395

626,850

* Certain amounts given in this column are not consistent with amounts in the consolidated financial statements for 2014 as they reflect the reclassifications made as disclosed in Note 6.

Interest paid and received by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to KGS 478,479 thousand and KGS 1,668,020 thousand,
respectively (2014: KGS 398,523 thousand and KGS 1,455,477 thousand, respectively)
Signed and authorised for release on behalf of the Management Board of the Bank:

Ulanbek Termechikov
Chairman
of the Management Board

Gulbara Djakypbaeva
Chief accountant

3 March 2016
Bishkek
Kyrgyz Republic
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KOMPANION BANK CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY
(formerly Kompanion Financial Group Microfinance CJSC)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

1.ORGANISATION
Kompanion Bank Closed Joint Stock Company (“the Bank”) (formerly Kompanion Financial Group Microfinance Closed Joint Stock Company)
was established in accordance with the legislation of Kyrgyz Republic in 2004. On 20 November 2015, the Bank changed its name from
Kompanion Financial Group Microfinance Closed Joint Stock Company. As at 31 December 2015 the Bank was operating under certificate No.
21732-3300-ЗAO, reissued by the Ministry of Justice of the Kyrgyz Republic on 20 November 2015 (31 December 2014: under certificate No.
21732-3300-ЗAO issued on 26 August 2013). The main activity of the Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is granting microcredit loans to
individuals and legal entities in the Kyrgyz Republic.
The Bank is registered and located at 62, Shota Rustaveli St., Bishkek, Kyrgyz Republic.
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had 15 and 16 branches in the Kyrgyz Republic, respectively.
The shareholder of the Bank and its ultimate controlling party is an international non-governmental organisation Mercy Corps with headquarters
in Portland, Oregon, USA, and Edinburgh, Scotland.
As at 31 December, the following shareholders owned more than 5% of the outstanding shares:
SHAREHOLDER
Mercy Corps

Nederlandse Financierings-Maatschappij voor
Ontwikkeungslanden N.V. (FMO)
Triodos Sicav II – Triodos
Microfinance Fund
Triodos Custody B.V.
TOTAL

2015, %

2014, %

65.0

100.0

8.75

–

8.75

–

100.0

100.0

17.5

–

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared based on the assumption that the Group will continue as a going concern in the
foreseeable future.
These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of Kyrgyz Som (KGS), unless otherwise indicated.
These consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are carried at fair value as explained below.
The Group maintains accounting in compliance with the legislation of the Kyrgyz Republic that was modified to enhance consistency with
IFRS requirements.
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KOMPANION BANK CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY
(formerly Kompanion Financial Group Microfinance CJSC)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Fair value measurement
The Group measures derivative financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Also, fair values of financial instruments measured
at amortised cost are disclosed in Note 24.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:
• in the principal market for the asset or liability; or
• in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
• Level 1 – quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
• Level 2 – valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable;
• Level 3 – valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
In the event of assets and liabilities recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a regular basis, the Group determines the fact
of transfer between levels of hierarchy sources by analysing the classification once again (based on initial data of the lowest level that are
significant for fair value evaluation in whole) at the end of each reporting period.
Functional currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The presentational currency of the Group is also Kyrgyz Som.
Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position only when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liability simultaneously. Income and expense is not offset in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation, and as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the
Group.
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KOMPANION BANK CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY (formerly Kompanion Financial Group Microfinance CJSC)
NOTES TO THE CONSOILIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

Consolidation principles
Subsidiaries, which are those entities which are controlled by the Group, are consolidated. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:
• power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee);
• exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee;
• the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.
Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it
has power over an investee, including:
• the contractual arrangement(s) with the other vote holders of the investee;
• rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
• the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and are no longer consolidated from the date that
control ceases. All intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated in full;
unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Where necessary,
accounting policies for subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a change of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. Losses are attributed
to the non-controlling interests even if that results in a deficit balance.
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, the carrying amount
of any non-controlling interests, the cumulative translation differences, recorded in equity; recognises the fair value of the consideration
received, the fair value of any investment retained and any surplus or deficit in profit or loss and reclassifies the parent’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income to profit or loss.
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KOMPANION BANK CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY (formerly Kompanion Financial Group Microfinance CJSC)
NOTES TO THE CONSOILIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

Non-controlling interests
Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets of subsidiaries not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Group.
Non-controlling interests are presented separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position, separately from parent shareholders’ equity.
Recognition of interest income and expense
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest bearing financial instruments classified as trading and available-for-sale
instruments, interest income or expense is recorded at the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset or financial liability. The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment options) and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, but not future credit losses. The carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability is adjusted if the Group
revises its estimates of payments or receipts. The adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on the original effective interest rate and the
change in carrying amount is recorded as interest income or expense.
Once the recorded value of a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been reduced due to an impairment loss, interest income
continues to be recognised using the original effective interest rate applied to the new carrying amount.
Recognition of fee and commission income and expense
The Group earns fee and commission income from a diverse range of services it provides to its customers. Fee income can be divided into
the following two categories:
• Fee income earned from services that are provided over a certain period of time
Fee and commission income obtained for rendering the services during a certain period of time are accrued during this period. These fees
include commission income and asset management, custody and other management and advisory fees. Loan commitment fees for loans that
are likely to be drawn down and other credit related fees are deferred (together with any incremental costs) and recognised as an adjustment
to the effective interest rate on the loan.
• Commission income from providing transaction services
Fees arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for a third party – such as the arrangement of the acquisition
of shares or other securities or the purchase or sale of businesses – are recognised on completion of the underlying transaction. Fees or
components of fees that are linked to a certain performance are recognised after fulfilling the corresponding criteria.
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KOMPANION BANK CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY (formerly Kompanion Financial Group Microfinance CJSC)
NOTES TO THE CONSOILIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)
Financial instruments
The Group recognises financial assets and liabilities in its consolidated statement of financial position when it becomes a party to the
contractual obligations of the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets and liabilities are recognised using settlement
date accounting.
Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised directly in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Financial assets
Financial assets are classified into the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity, available-for-sale, loans and
accounts receivable.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are classified as at fair value through profit or loss when the financial asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at
fair value through profit or loss at initial recognition.
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:
• it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term;
• at initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.
A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition if:
• such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise;
• the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the
grouping is provided internally on that basis; or
• it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
permits the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with remeasurement recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Change in fair value and other income received on the financial asset and are included in the
net losses from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, except for foreign currency revaluation which is included in ‘Net foreign
exchange gain’ in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Fair value is determined in the manner
described Note 24.
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KOMPANION BANK CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY (formerly Kompanion Financial Group Microfinance CJSC)
NOTES TO THE CONSOILIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, unrestricted balances on correspondent and deposit accounts and amounts due from banks
with original maturities within three months, which may be converted to cash within a short period of time and thus are considered liquid.
Unrestricted balances on correspondent and deposit accounts and amounts due from banks with original maturities within three months are
recorded within “Amounts due from banks and other financial institutions”.
Amounts due from banks and other financial institutions
Amounts due from banks and other financial institutions and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an organised market are classified as “loans and receivables”. Amounts due from banks and other financial institutions and other receivables
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.
Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial
assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been affected.
For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:
• significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
• breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
• default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
• it becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or
• absence of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.
The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
For certain categories of financial assets, such as loans and receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of decrease in value of loans to customers could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in delayed payments in the portfolio, as well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on payments.
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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KOMPANION BANK CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY (formerly Kompanion Financial Group Microfinance CJSC)
NOTES TO THE CONSOILIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

Future cash flows on a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the Group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current
observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the years on which the historical loss experience is based and to
remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not exist currently. Estimates of changes in future cash flows reflect, and are
directionally consistent with, changes in related observable data from year to year (such as changes in unemployment rates, property prices,
commodity prices, payment status, or other factors that are indicative of incurred losses by the Group or their magnitude). The methodology
and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual
loss experience.
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of loans and
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a loan or a receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Changes in the amount of the allowance account are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
Write-off of loans issued and receivables
Loans and receivables are written off against the allowance account when deemed uncollectible. Loans and receivables are written off after
management has exercised all possibilities available to collect amounts due to the Group and after the Group has sold all available collateral.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are reflected as an offset to the charge for impairment of financial assets in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period of recovery.
Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognise a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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KOMPANION BANK CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY (formerly Kompanion Financial Group Microfinance CJSC)
NOTES TO THE CONSOILIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than it is entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an option to repurchase part of the transferred
asset or retains a residual interest that does not result in the retention of substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the Group
retains control), the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under
continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received
for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.
Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities, including due to banks and other financial institutions, and other liabilities, are initially measured at fair value, net
of transaction costs.
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised
on an effective yield basis.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period.
Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. Where an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Derivative financial instruments
In the normal course of business, the Group enters into various derivative financial instruments including swaps and secured loans. The Group
enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate risk, including
interest rate currency swaps and currency swaps. Further details of derivative financial instruments are disclosed in Note 15. Derivatives are
initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at each
reporting date. The fair values are estimated based on quoted market prices or pricing models that take into account the current market
and contractual prices of the underlying instruments and other factors. Derivatives are carried as assets when their fair value is positive and
as liabilities when it is negative. Derivatives are included in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the consolidated statement
of financial position. Gains and losses resulting from these instruments are included in net loss from derivative financial instruments in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, except for foreign currency revaluation which is included in net foreign exchange
gain.
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KOMPANION BANK CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY (formerly Kompanion Financial Group Microfinance CJSC)
NOTES TO THE CONSOILIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

Loans to customers
Loans to customers represent non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market,
except for assets that are classified into other categories of financial instruments.
Loans to customers granted by the Group are initially recognised at fair value plus related transaction costs. Where the fair value of consideration
given does not equal the fair value of the loan, for example where the loan is issued at lower than market rates, the difference between
the fair value of consideration given and the fair value of the loan is recognised as a loss on initial recognition of the loan and included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income according to nature of the losses. Subsequently loans are
recognized at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Loans to customers are carried net of any allowance for impairment.
Property and equipment and intangible assets
Property and equipment and intangible assets are recognised at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortisation. Depreciation on assets
under construction and those not placed in service commences from the date the assets are ready for their intended use.
Depreciation is charged on the carrying value of property and equipment and intangible assets, and is designed to write off assets over their
useful economic lives. Depreciation is charged on a straight line basis at the following annual prescribed rates:
DEPRECIATION RATE
Buildings
Transportation
Furniture and office equipment
Computers hardware
Intangible assets

2%
10-17%
20%
33.3%
10%

Capital expenditures for leasehold improvements are amortised over the shorter of the life of the related leased asset or the lease term.
Expenses related to repairs and renewals are charged when incurred and included in operating expenses unless they qualify for capitalisation.
The carrying amounts of property and equipment and intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date to assess whether they are
recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where
carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amount. After the recognition of an
impairment loss the depreciation charge for property and equipment is adjusted in future periods to allocate the assets’ revised carrying
value, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. The current income tax expense is calculated in
accordance with the legislation of the Kyrgyz Republic.
Current tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other reporting
periods and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset realised, based on tax rates and tax legislation that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Current and deferred tax are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively.
Operating taxes
The Bank performs its activities in the Kyrgyz Republic, and it is required to accrue and pay different taxes, other than income tax, that are
applied to the Bank’s activities. These taxes are included as a component of operating expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.
Amounts due to banks and other financial institutions and subordinated debt
Due to banks and other financial institutions and subordinated debt are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently, amounts due are
stated at amortised cost and any difference between net proceeds and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings, using the effective interest method.
Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, and it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
obligation can be made.
Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position but are disclosed unless the possibility of any
outflow in settlement is remote. A contingent asset is not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position but disclosed when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

33

KOMPANION BANK CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY (formerly Kompanion Financial Group Microfinance CJSC)
NOTES TO THE CONSOILIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

Foreign currency
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
Exchange differences on monetary items due to changes in foreign exchange rates are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
The exchange rates used by the Group in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements as at year-end are as follows:

KGS/USD

31 DECEMBER
2015
75.8993

31 DECEMBER
2014
58.8865

KGS/euro

83.0073

71.6943

Share capital
Common shares are classified as equity. Any excess of the fair value of consideration received over the par value of shares issued is recognised
as share premium.
Dividends are recognised in equity as a reduction in the period in which they are declared. Dividends that are declared after the reporting
date are treated as a subsequent event in accordance with IAS 10 Subsequent Events and are appropriately disclosed.
Retirement obligations
In accordance with the requirements of the Kyrgyz legislation certain percentages of pension payments are withheld from total disbursements
to staff to be transferred to state pension fund. Such pension system provides for the calculation of current payments by the employer as a
percentage of current total payments to staff. Such costs are recognized in the period the related salaries are earned. Upon retirement, all
retirement benefit payments are made by the state pension fund.
The Group also has pension arrangement that provides for defined amount to be paid each year to the special fund. Upon retirement eligible
employees would receive pension benefits from this fund in accordance with the amount accumulated in this fund.

4. SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant in the circumstances. Actual outcomes could differ from
these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that periods, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.
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Significant assumptions used in applying accounting policies
The following are significant assumptions apart from those involving estimations, that the Group management has made in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.
Fair value of financial instruments
Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position cannot be derived
from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models. The input to
these models is taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing
fair values. More details are provided in Note 24.
Impairment of loans and receivables
The Group regularly reviews its loans and receivables to assess impairment. Allowance for loan impairment is established by the Group to
recognise losses from impairment in loan portfolio and receivables. The Group considers accounting estimates related to allowance for
impairment of loans and receivables as the key source of estimation uncertainty since (a) they are highly susceptible to change from period
to period as the assumptions about future default rates and valuation of potential losses relating to impaired loans and receivables are based
on recent performance experience, and (b) any significant difference between the Group’s estimated losses and actual losses would require
the Group to record provisions which could have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements in future periods.
The Group uses management’s judgement to estimate the amount of any impairment loss in cases where a borrower has financial difficulties
and there are few available sources of historical data relating to similar borrowers. Similarly, the Group estimates changes in future cash flows
based on past performance, past customer behaviour, observable data indicating an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in
the Group, and national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets on the Group. Management uses estimates based
on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the group of
loans. The Bank uses management’s judgement to adjust observable data for a group of loans to reflect current circumstances not reflected
in historical data.
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, total value of loans to customers amounted to KGS 4,397,836 thousand and KGS 4,703,462 thousand,
respectively, and the amount of allowance for impairment amounted to KGS 296,798 thousand and KGS 228,341 thousand, respectively.

5. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
Changes in accounting policies
The Group applied the following IFRS amendments, which became effective for annual periods on or after 1 January 2015:
Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Benefits
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IAS 19 requires an entity to consider contributions from employees or third parties when accounting for defined benefit plans. Where such contributions
are linked to the services, they must be attributed to periods of service by reducing the service cost. These amendments clarify that, if the amount of
the contributions is independent of the number of years of service, an entity is permitted to recognise them as a reduction in the service cost in the
period in which the service is rendered, instead of allocating these contributions to the periods of service.
Annual improvements 2010-2012 cycle
These improvements are effective from 1 July 2014 and applied by the Group in these consolidated financial statements for the first time. They include:
IFRS 2 Share-based Payment
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies various issues relating to the definitions of performance and service conditions which are
vesting conditions, including:
• a performance condition must contain a service condition;
• a performance target must be met while the counterparty is rendering service;
• a performance target may relate to the operations or activities of an entity, or to those of another entity in the same group;
• a performance condition may be a market or non-market condition;
• if the counterparty, regardless of the reason, ceases to provide service during the vesting period, the service condition is not satisfied.
IFRS 3 Business Combinations
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that all contingent consideration arrangements classified as liabilities (or assets) arising from a
business combination should be subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss whether or not they fall within the scope of IFRS 9 (or IAS
39, as applicable). Such an approach is not consistent with the Group’s accounting policies and for this reason this amendment has no impact on its
accounting policies.
IFRS 8 Operating Segments
Amendments are applied on a retrospective basis and clarify that:
• an entity must disclose the judgements made by management in applying the aggregation criteria in paragraph 12 of IFRS 8, including a brief
description of operating segments that have been aggregated and the economic characteristics (e.g., sales and gross margins) used to assess whether
the segments are ‘similar’;
• the reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is only required to be disclosed if the reconciliation is reported to the chief operating decision
maker, similar to the required disclosure for segment liabilities.
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
This amendment to IFRS 13 clarifies in the Basis for Conclusions that short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest rates can be
measured at invoice amounts when the effect of discounting is immaterial. Such an approach is not consistent with the Group’s accounting policies
and for this reason this amendment has no impact on its accounting policies.
IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets
The amendments are applied retrospectively and clarify provisions of IAS 16 and IAS 38 stating that the asset may be revalued by reference to
observable data on either the gross or the net carrying amount. In addition, the accumulated depreciation or amortisation is the difference between
the gross carrying amount of the asset and its carrying amount.
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IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures
The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that a management entity (an entity that provides key management personnel
services) is a related party subject to the related party disclosures. In addition, an entity that uses a management entity is required to disclose
the expenses incurred for management entity services. This amendment has no impact on the Group since it does not engage other entities
to provide the key management personnel services.
Annual IFRS improvements 2011-2013 cycle
These improvements are effective from 1 July 2014 and applied by the Bank in these consolidated financial statements for the first time. They
include:
IFRS 3 Business Combinations
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies for the scope exceptions within IFRS 3 that:
• joint arrangements, not just joint ventures, are outside the scope of IFRS 3;
• this scope exception applies only to the accounting in the financial statements of the joint arrangement itself.
The Group is not a joint arrangement, accordingly, this amendment is not relevant to the Group and its subsidiaries.
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that the portfolio exception in IFRS 13 can be applied not only to financial assets and
financial liabilities, but also to other contracts within the scope of IFRS 9 (or IAS 39, as applicable). The Group does not apply the portfolio
exception in IFRS 13.
IAS 40 Investment Property
The description of ancillary services in IAS 40 differentiates between investment property and owner-occupied property (i.e., property and
equipment). The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that IFRS 3, and not the description of ancillary services in IAS 40, is used
to determine if the transaction is the purchase of an asset or business combination. In previous periods, the Group has applied IFRS 3, not
IAS 40, in determining whether the transaction constitutes an asset acquisition or a business combination. Thus, this amendment does not
impact the accounting policy of the Group.
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards – Meaning of ‘Effective IFRSs’
The amendment clarifies in the Basis for Conclusions that an entity may choose to apply either a current standard or a new standard that is
not yet mandatory, but permits early application, provided either standard is applied consistently throughout the periods presented in the
entity’s first IFRS financial statements. This amendment to IFRS 1 has no impact on the Group, since the Group is an existing IFRS preparer.
Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective
Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Group’s consolidated financial statements are listed
below. The Group intends to adopt those standards when they become effective.
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IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments which reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and
replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement as well as all previous version of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements to classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting.
IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Early application is permitted. The standard is applied retrospectively
but provision of comparative information is not mandatory. Early application of previous versions of IFRS 9 (2009, 2010 and 2013) is permitted
if the date of initial application is before 1 February 2015. Application of IFRS 9 will have an impact on classification and measurement of
the Group’s financial assets and will not have an impact on classification and measurement of its financial liabilities. The Group expects that
IFRS 9 requirements to impairment will have a significant impact on its equity. The Group will need a more detailed analysis comprising all
reasonable and acceptable, including but not limited to prospective, information to measure the extent of such impact.
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 published in May 2014 establishes a new five-step model of accounting for revenue from contracts with customers. Recognition of
revenue arising from lease contracts within the scope of IAS 17 Leases and insurance contracts within the scope of IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
and revenue arising in connection with financial instruments and other contractual rights and obligations within the scope of IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (or IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, if early adopted) is not within the scope of application of IFRS
15 and regulated by the respective standards.
Under IFRS 15 revenue is recognised at the amount of consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to measuring and recognising revenue.
The new standard is applicable to all entities and supersedes all current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS. This standard is applied
retrospectively either in full or using the simplifications of practical nature for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Early
application is permitted. The Group is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15 and plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective
date.
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
IFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose activities are subject to rate-regulation, to continue applying most of its existing
accounting policies for regulatory deferral account balances upon its first-time adoption of IFRS. Entities that adopt IFRS 14 must present the
regulatory deferral account balances as separate line items on the statement of financial position and present movements in these account
balances as separate line items in the income statement and statement of other comprehensive income. The standard requires disclosures
on the nature of activities of the entity subject to rate-regulation, associated risks and the effects of that rate-regulation on its financial
statements. IFRS 14 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The standard has no impact on the Group, since the
Group is an existing IFRS preparer.
Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
The amendments to IFRS 11 require that a joint operator accounting for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation, in which the activity
of the joint operation constitutes a business must apply the relevant IFRS 3 principles for business combinations accounting. The amendments
also clarify that a previously held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint
operation while joint control is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to IFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do not
apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting entity, are under common control of the same ultimate controlling party.
The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition of any additional interests in the
same joint operation and are prospectively effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted.
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These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Group.
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
The amendments clarify one of the principles in IAS 16 and IAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are generated from
operating a business (of which the asset is part) rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. As a result,
a revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only be used in very limited circumstances
to amortise intangible assets. The amendments are effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Early
application is permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Group given that the Group has not used a revenuebased method to depreciate its non-current assets.
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
The amendments change the accounting requirements for biological assets that meet the definition of bearer plants. Under the amendments,
biological assets that meet the definition of bearer plants will no longer be within the scope of IAS 41. Instead, IAS 16 will apply. After initial
recognition, bearer plants will be measured under IAS 16 at accumulated cost (before maturity) and using either the cost model or revaluation
model (after maturity). The amendments also require that produce that grows on bearer plants will remain in the scope of IAS 41 measured
at fair value less costs to sell. For government grants related to bearer plants, IAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance will apply. The amendments are effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Early
application is permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Group as the Group does not have any bearer plants.
Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
The amendments will allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their
separate financial statements. Entities already applying IFRS and electing to change to the equity method in its separate financial statements
will have to apply that change retrospectively. For first-time adopters of IFRS electing to use the equity method in its separate financial
statements, they will be required to apply this method from the date of transition to IFRS. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Early application is permitted. The Group currently considers whether to apply these amendments for
preparation of its separate financial statements. These amendments will not have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
The amendments address the acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and IAS 28 in dealing with the loss of control
of a subsidiary that is contributed to an associate or a joint venture as a contribution to equity. The amendments clarify that an investor
recognises a full gain or loss on the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a business, as defined in IFRS 3, between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments must be applied prospectively to transactions occurring in annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016. Early application is permitted.
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
The amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements clarify, rather than significantly change, existing IAS 1 requirements. The
amendments clarify:
• the materiality requirements in IAS 1;
• That specific line items in the statement(s) of profit or loss and OCI and the statement of financial position may be disaggregated;
• that entities have flexibility as to the order in which they present the notes to financial statements;
• that the share of OCI of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method must be presented in aggregate as a single
line item, and classified between those items that will or will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

39

KOMPANION BANK CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY (formerly Kompanion Financial Group Microfinance CJSC)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that apply when additional subtotals are presented in the statement of financial
position and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Group.
Investment Entities – amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Applying the Consolidation Exception
The amendments address issues that have arisen in applying the investment entities exception under IFRS 10. The amendments to IFRS 10
clarify that the exemption from presenting consolidated financial statements applies to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment
entity, when the investment entity measures all of its subsidiaries at fair value.
Furthermore, the amendments to IFRS 10 clarify that only a subsidiary of an investment entity that is not an investment entity itself and
that provides support services to the investment entity is consolidated. All other subsidiaries of an investment entity are measured at fair
value. The amendments to IAS 28 allow the investor, when applying the equity method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by the
investment entity associate or joint venture to its profit in subsidiaries. These amendments must be applied retrospectively and are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Early application is permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any
impact to the Group.
Annual improvements 2012-2014 cycle
These improvements are effective on or after 1 January 2016 and are not expected to have a material impact on the Group. They include:
IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations – changes in methods of disposal
Assets (or disposal groups) are generally disposed of either through sale or through distribution to owners. The amendment to IFRS 5
clarifies that changing from one of these disposal methods to the other should not be considered to be a new plan of disposal, rather it is
a continuation of the original plan. There is therefore no interruption of the application of the requirements in IFRS 5. The amendment also
clarifies that changing the disposal method does not change the date of classification. The amendment must be applied prospectively to
changes in methods of disposal that occur in annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Early application is permitted.
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures – servicing contracts
IFRS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures for any continuing involvement in a transferred asset that is derecognised in its entirety. The
Board was asked whether servicing contracts constitute continuing involvement for the purposes of applying these disclosure requirements.
The amendment clarifies that a servicing contract that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial asset. An entity must
assess the nature of the fee and arrangement against the guidance for continuing involvement in paragraphs IFRS 7.B30 and IFRS 7.42C in
order to assess whether the disclosures are required. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
Early application is permitted. The amendment is to be applied such that the assessment of which servicing contracts constitute continuing
involvement will need to be done retrospectively. However, the required disclosures would not need to be provided for any period beginning
before the annual period in which the entity first applies the amendments.
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures – applicability of the offsetting disclosures to condensed interim financial statements
In December 2011, IFRS 7 was amended to add guidance on offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities. In the effective date and
transition for that amendment IFRS 7 states that “An entity shall apply those amendments for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013 and interim periods within those annual periods”. However, the interim disclosure standard, IAS 34, does not reflect this requirement.
As a result, it is not clear whether the respective information should be disclosed in the condensed interim financial statements or not.
The amendment removes the phrase ‘and interim periods within those annual periods’, clarifying that these IFRS 7 disclosures are not required
in the condensed interim financial report. These amendment must be applied retrospectively and are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016. Early application is permitted.
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IAS 19 Employee Benefits – discounting rate for regional market
The amendment to IAS 19 clarifies that market depth of high quality corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency, in which the
obligation is denominated, rather than the country where the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for high quality corporate
bonds in the respective currency, government bond rates must be used. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016. Early application is permitted.
IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting – disclosure of information ‘elsewhere in the interim financial report’
The amendment states that the required interim disclosures must either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by crossreference between the interim financial statements and wherever they are included within the greater interim financial report (e.g., in the
management commentary or risk report). The Board specified that the other information within the interim financial report must be available
to users on the same terms as the interim financial statements and at the same time. If users do not have access to the other information in
this manner, then the interim financial report is incomplete. These amendment must be applied retrospectively and are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Early application is permitted.

6. RECLASSIFICATIONS
In the consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2014 and for the year then ended, certain reclassifications were made to bring it
into line with the presentation as at 31 December 2015 and for the year then ended.

NOTE

AS PREVIOUSLY
REPORTED

AMOUNT RECLASSIFIED

ADJUSTED AMOUNT

Loans to customers

[1]

4,556,346

(81,225)

4,475,121

Other assets

[2]

69,210

(16,954)

52,256

6,045,766

(98,179)

5,947,587

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

TOTAL ASSETS

Amounts due to banks and other financial
institutions
Other liabilities

[2]

4,925,000

(16,954)

4,908,046

[1]

296,003

(81,225)

214,778

Income tax liabilities

[3]

2,816

(2,816)

–

Deferred income tax liabilities

[3]

–

1,570

1,570

Current income tax liability

[3]

–

1,246

1,246

5,271,320

(98,179)

5,173,141

Total liabilities
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NOTE
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

AS
PREVIOUSLY
REPORTED
6,045,766

AMOUNT
RECLASSIFIED

ADJUSTED
AMOUNT

(98,179)

5,947,587

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in loans to customers

[1]

(737,036)

81,225

(655,811)

(Increase)/decrease in other assets

[2]

(10,224)

16,954

6,730

Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities

[1]

70,228

(81,225)

(10,997)

Cash outflow from operating activities before taxation

[2]

(170,735)

16,954

(153,781)

(176,636)

16,954

(159,682)

2,637,245

(16,954)

2,620,291

588,680

(16,954)

571,726

Net cash flows used in operating activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from banks and other financial institutions
Net cash inflow from financing activities

[2]

Notes:
[1] Discount on loans to customers was transferred into the line item “loans to customers”.
[2] Discount on amounts due to banks and other financial institutions was transferred into the line item “amounts due to banks and other financial
institutions”.
[3] Current and deferred income tax liabilities were shown as separate items of the statement of financial position.
Management believes that there is no need to present the third consolidated statement of financial position and related notes and that the absence of
this information is not a material omission.
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7. NET INTEREST INCOME
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2015

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2014

1,489,005

1,386,124

132,751

52,217

40,668

13,286

9,451

7,274

1,671,875

1,463,901

(487,835)

(376,922)

(6,028)

(39,640)

(493,863)

(416,562)

1,178,012

1,047,339

INTEREST INCOME
Loans to customers, including:
Group loans (i)
Individual loans
Due from banks and other financial institutions
Other interest income
Total interest income on financial assets
recorded at amortised cost
Interest expenses
Due to banks and other financial institutions
Subordinated debt
Total interest expense
Net interest income before provision for
impairment losses on interest bearing assets
(i)

Group loans are unsecured loans granted to groups of borrowers who sign loan agreements with joint responsibility to repay the loan.

43

KOMPANION BANK CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY (formerly Kompanion Financial Group Microfinance CJSC)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

8. CHARGE ON ALLOWANCE FOR IMPAIRMENT
Allowance for impairment of interest bearing assets comprises:
LOANS TO
CUSTOMERS
31 December 2013
Allowance charge
Write-off
Recovery of allowance previously
written-off
31 December 2014
Allowance charge
Write-off
Recovery of allowance previously
written-off
31 December 2015

174,920

AMOUNTS DUE FROM BANKS
AND OTHER FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS
5, 875

TOTAL
180,795

61,806

–

61,806

(12,071)

–

(12,071)

3,686

–

3,686

228,341

5,875

234,216

87,706

–

87,706

(22,614)

–

(22,614)

3,365

–

3,365

296,798

5,875

302,673

9. NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAIN
YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER
2015
650,346

YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER
2014
581,966

(618,659)

(561,206)

Net losses from foreign currencies dealing

(5,003)

(7,931)

Total net foreign exchange gain

26,684

12,829

Gain from foreign currency revaluation of derivative financial instruments
Loss from revaluation of monetary assets and liabilities, except for derivative financial instruments
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10. OPERATING EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER
2015

Year ended
31 December
2014

397,134

365,369

Contributions to the Social Fund of Kyrgyz
Republic

62,741

63,095

Property and equipment maintenance

45,754

36,988

Depreciation and amortisation

38,176

38,570

Security

36,046

35,256

Operating lease

30,133

27,061

Transportation costs

29,872

28,535

Professional services

21,877

12,601

Business trip and representative expenses

15,117

11,677

Taxes other than income tax

14,377

798

Advertising and subscription costs

13,166

4,139

Court filings

12,352

1,350

Telecommunication, mail and courier expenses

11,103

10,909

Office supplies

9,604

11,179

Utilities

6,793

6,941

Training of personnel

3,084

3,329

Provision for pension plan

3,057

–

Provision for medical program

3,057

–

538

916

32,045

23,693

786,026

682,406

Salaries and bonuses

Charity and sponsorship
Other expenses
Total operating expenses
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11. INCOME TAX
The Group provides for taxes based on the tax accounts maintained and prepared in accordance with the tax regulations in the Kyrgyz
Republic, except MCC Kompanion LLC, which is regulated by Tax authorities of the Republic of Tajikistan. For the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2014, the income tax rate was 10%.
Tax effect of temporary differences as at 31 December 2015 and 2014, is as follows:
31 DECEMBER
2015

31 DECEMBER
2014

Provision for bonuses to employees

8,346

6,131

Provision for court filings

6,070

4,835

Provision for unused vacations

2,381

2,318

802

565

1,360

–

18,959

13,849

(9,150)

(14,494)

(925)

(925)

(10,075)

(15,419)

8,884

(1,570)

Deferred income tax assets

Accrued operating expenses
Other
Total deferred income tax assets
Deferred income tax liabilities
Property and equipment and intangible assets
Allowance for impairment on loans to customers
Total deferred income tax liabilities
Net deferred income tax assets/(liabilities)
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A reconciliation of the income tax expense based on statutory rates with actual is as follows:
2015

2014

43,440

74,906

10%

10%

4,344

7,491

(3,595)

–

Non-deductible operating expenses

6,910

5,627

Income tax expense

7,659

13,118

Current income tax expenses

21,708

11,956

Correction of tax declarations of prior periods

(3,595)

–

(10,454)

1,162

7,659

13,118

2015

2014

(1,570)

408

10,454

1,162

8,884

(1,570)

Profit before taxation
Statutory tax rate
Theoretical income tax expense
at the statutory rate
Correction of tax declarations of prior periods

Deferred income tax (benefit)/expenses
Income tax expense

Deferred income tax (liability)/asset
At the beginning of the year
Deferred income tax benefit/(charge) for the year
Deferred income tax asset/(liability)
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12. AMOUNTS DUE FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
31 DECEMBER
2015

31 DECEMBER
2014

1,295,960

623,933

2,435

2,917

1,298,395

626,850

999

589

24,137

24,128

1,323,531

651,567

(5,875)

(5,875)

1,317,656

645,692

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on current accounts in banks in Kyrgyz
Republic
Placements with banks with original maturities
of less than 90 days
Total cash and cash equivalents
Amounts due from banks in Kyrgyz Republic
restricted in use
Amounts due from other financial institutions
in other CIS countries with original maturities of
more than 90 days
Total due from banks
Less provision for impairment
Total amounts due from banks and other
financial institutions

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, due from banks includes accrued interest of KGS 2,270 thousand and KGS 770 thousand, respectively.
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13. LOANS TO CUSTOMERS
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, loans to customers were presented as follows:
31 DECEMBER
2015

31 DECEMBER
2014

3,618,558

4,351,613

779,278

351,849

Less provision for impairment (Note 8)

4,397,836
(296,798)

4,703,462
(228,341)

Total loans to customers

4,101,038

4,475,121

Group loans
Individual loans

Group loans are unsecured loans granted to groups of borrowers, who sign loan agreements with joint responsibility to repay the loan.
31 DECEMBER
2015

31 DECEMBER
2014

3,571,629

4,351,613

46,929

–

Individual loans secured by collateral

608,885

262,364

Unsecured individual loans

170,393

89,485

4,397,836

4,703,462

(296,798)

(228,341)

4,101,038

4,475,121

Unsecured loans – group loans
Group loans secured by collateral

Less: provision for impairment
Total loans to customers

Collateral and other credit enhancements
The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. Guidelines are implemented
regarding the acceptability of types of collateral and valuation parameters.
The main types of collateral are as follows:
• guarantees and surety from third parties;
• goods and inventory;
• immovable property.
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Loans are made principally within Kyrgyz Republic in the following industry sectors :

31 DECEMBER
2015

31 DECEMBER
2014

2,598,449

2,706,843

Consumer loans

552,106

891,891

Trade

605,729

673,445

Services

254,484

225,246

123,832

120,106

47,546

46,019

215,690

39,912

4,397,836

4,703,462

(296,798)

(228,341)

4,101,038

4,475,121

Analysis by sector
Agriculture

Mortgage loans
Manufacturing industry
Other

Less provision for impairment
Total loans to customers
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14. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
LAND

BUILDINGS

LEASEHOLD
IMPROVEMENTS

FURNITURE COMPUTERS
AND OFFICE HARDWARE
EQUIPMENT

VEHICLES CONSTRUCTION IN
PROGRESS

TOTAL INTANGIBLE
PROPERTY
ASSETS
AND
EQUIPMENT

TOTAL
PROPERTY
AND
EQUIPMENT
AND
INTANGIBLE
ASSETS

1,364

190,309

3,105

44,489

58,422

35,350

16,537

349,576

99,713

449,289

–

7,535

8,865

9,608

6,463

5,453

13,979

51,903

5,735

57,638

Disposals

–

(1,667)

(374)

(1,067)

(1,594)

(6,365)

–

(11,067)

–

(11,067)

Transfers

–

20,832

–

–

–

–

(20,832)

–

–

–

1,364

217,009

11,596

53,030

63,291

34,438

9,684

390,412

105,448

495,860

Purchases

–

606

3,049

32,324

6,073

7,630

625

50,307

9,748

60,055

Disposals

–

–

(420)

(546)

(2,513)

–

–

(3,479)

–

(3,479)

31 December
2015
Accumulated
depreciation
and
amortization

1,364

217,615

14,225

84,808

66,851

42,068

10,309

437,240

115,196

552,436

–

(8,222)

(2,324)

(26,356)

(43,841)

(19,512)

–

(100,255)

(43,426)

(143,681)

Charge for the
year
Written off on
disposal

–

(4,363)

(2,681)

(6,119)

(10,128)

(4,539)

–

(27,830)

(10,740)

(38,570)

–

–

374

493

1,576

4,786

–

7,229

426

7,655

At cost
31 December
2013
Purchases

31 December
2014

31 December
2013
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31
December
2015
Net carrying
amount

31
December
2013
31
December
2014
31
December
2015

LAND

BUILDINGS

LEASEHOLD
IMPROVEMENTS

FURNITURE
AND OFFICE
EQUIPMENT

COMPUTERS
HARDWARE

VEHICLES

CONSTRUCTION
IN PROGRESS

TOTAL
PROPERTY
AND
EQUIPMENT

INTANGIBLE
ASSETS

TOTAL
PROPERTY
AND
EQUIPMENT
AND
INTANGIBLE
ASSETS

–

(17,311)

(7,687)

(39,003)

(57,481)

(23,259)

–

(144,741)

(64,995)

1,364

182,087

781

18,133

14,581

15,838

16,537

249,321

56,287

305,608

1,364

204,424

6,965

21,048

10,898

15,173

9,684

269,556

51,708

321,264

1,364

200,304

6,538

45,805

9,370

18,809

10,309

292,499

50,201

342,700

(209,736)

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had pledged buildings with net book value KGS 170,951 thousand and KGS 174,452 thousand
as collateral under credit line agreement with Demir Kyrgyz International Bank CJSC.
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, property and equipment included fully amortised equipment with an initial cost of KGS 111,199 thousand
and KGS 78,783 thousand, respectively.
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, intangible assets included software.
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15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS
Currency swap
Total derivative financial
instruments

31 DECEMBER 2015

31 DECEMBER 2014

NET FAIR VALUE

NET FAIR VALUE

NOTIONAL VALUE
2,308,841

ASSETS

LIABILITIES

443,700

–

443,700

–

NOTIONAL
VALUE
3,272,263

ASSETS

LIABILITIES
453,254

–

453,254

–

Swaps
Swaps are contractual agreements between two parties to exchange movements in interest and foreign currency rates and equity indices, and
(in the case of credit default swaps) to make payments with respect to defined credit events based on specified notional amounts.
As at 31 December 2015, the Group had KGS denominated loans in the amount of KGS 930,380 thousand (2014: KGS 1,037,937 thousand)
received from local banks and security deposits denominated in US dollars in the amount of KGS 1,126,981 thousand (USD 14,848 thousand)
(2014: KZT 1,259,996 thousand or USD 21,397 thousand), which serve as security against these loans. Since the contractual effect of these
loans and deposits is equivalent to currency swap, the said transactions have been combined and treated as a derivative. Although the Group
uses these derivative financial instruments for the purpose of risk hedging, these instruments do not meet the hedge accounting requirements.
The following are the key assumptions that the Group made in the measurement of fair value of derivative financial instruments.
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16. OTHER ASSETS
31 DECEMBER
2015

31 DECEMBER
2014

16,166

17,013

16,166

17,013

26,213

22,221

Advances paid

7,170

12,677

Inventories

4,008

2,031

Prepayment for taxes other than income tax

2,027

1,419

Other

1,284

2,544

56,868

57,905

Less provision for impairment

(5,649)

(5,649)

Total other assets

51,219

52,256

Other financial assets
Accounts receivable

Other non-financial assets
Advances for services and goods
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17. AMOUNTS DUE TO BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
31 DECEMBER
2015

31 DECEMBER
2014

2,964,816

3,881,501

European Bank for Reconstruction and
Development

722,314

601,256

Loans from Shareholders

616,943

–

Loans from Ministry of finance of Kyrgyz
Republic

204,549

145,966

–

74,138

76,042

205,185

4,584,664

4,908,046

Investment funds

International Financial Corporation
Loans from other financial institution
Total amounts due to banks and other
financial institutions

As at 31 December 2015, the Group breached non-financial covenants in relation to share of the Bank’s loans issued to clients from rural
area not less than 10%; increase in the loans to agricultural sector borrowers not less than 5% as required under the loan agreement with the
Ministry of Finance of Kyrgyz Republic dated 24 September 2014. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of the loan from the Ministry
of Finance of Kyrgyz Republic was KGS 65,855 thousand. A waiver for 2015 and 2016 for these two indicators was received from the Ministry
of Finance of Kyrgyz Republic on 30 December 2015.
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18. OTHER LIABILITIES
31 DECEMBER
2015

31 DECEMBER
2014

Accounts payable for services and goods

8,128

12,542

Total other financial liabilities

8,128

12,542

110,115

90,033

Provision for court filings

60,702

48,350

Taxes other than income tax

33,744

13,083

Liabilities under Community Development
Initiative project

13,322

16,799

Accrued expenses under health program

15,566

12,509

Accrued expenses under pension program

12,645

9,588

3,200

3,500

18,487

8,374

Total other non-financial liabilities

267,781

202,236

Total other liabilities

275,909

214,778

Other financial liabilities

Other non-financial liabilities
Accrued expenses on vacation and bonuses to
employees

Accrued expenses related to public relations
Other
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The movement of provision for court filings is represented as follows:
2015

2014

At the beginning of the year

48,350

47,000

Provision charge (Note 10)

12,352

1,350

At the end of the year

60,702

48,350

19. SUBORDINATED DEBT
COUNTERPARTY

Triple Jump Innovation Fund B.V.
(Netherlands)

NOMINAL
INTEREST RATE

31 DECEMBER
2015

31 DECEMBER
2014

10.50%

62,796

47,501

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, subordinated debt includes amounts due to Triple Jump Innovation Fund B.V. with maturity on 15
November 2020. The amount indicated in table above included accrued interest amounting to KGS 2,277 thousand and KGS 392 thousand,
respectively.
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, subordinated debt to Triple Jump Innovation Fund B.V. included unamortised fees paid for receipt of loan
amounting to KGS 495 thousand and KGS 569 thousand, respectively.

20. SUBSIDIARIES
The consolidated financial statements include the following major subsidiaries:

NAME OF
SUBSIDIARY
MCC Kompanion Invest
LLC
MCC Kompanion LLC

PRINCIPAL
ACTIVITIES
Micro lending,
Islamiс finance

DATE OF
ORIGINATION
1 November 2011

COUNTRY OF
INCORPORATION
Kyrgyzstan

Micro lending

28 July 2011

Tajikistan

PROPORTION OF OWNERSHIP
INTEREST AND VOTING POWER HELD BY
THE BANK
31 DECEMBER
31 DECEMBER
2015
2014
99.99%
99.99%
90.00%

90.00%

57

KOMPANION BANK CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY (formerly Kompanion Financial Group Microfinance CJSC)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

21. SHARE CAPITAL
Movements in shares outstanding, issued and fully paid were as follows:
NUMBER OF
SHARES

TOTAL AMOUNT OF ORDINARY SHARES

650,400

650,400

_

_

31 December 2014

650,400

650,400

Increase in share capital

350,216

350,216

1,000,616

1,000,616

31 December 2013
Increase in share capital

31 December 2015

Nominal value per common share is KGS 1,000.
On 4 December 2014 shareholders of the Bank approved an issue of 350,216 ordinary shares, which were placed and purchased by new
shareholders on 4 February 2015. The total consideration received for these shares was comprised of cash for the total amount of KGS
527,366, which includes share premium in amount of KGS 177,150 thousand.
At the Shareholders’ Meeting on 23 January 2015, the Bank declared dividends on common shares totaling KGS 7,124 thousand. By the
decision of Shareholder on 12 May 2014, the Bank declared dividends on common shares totaling KGS 13,348 thousand.

22. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Capital commitments
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had no commitments for capital expenditure.
Operating lease commitments
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had no material commitments under non-cancellable operating leases.
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Legal claims
From time to time and in the normal course of business, claims against the Group are received from customers and counterparties. As at 31
December 2015 and 2014, a provision for contingent court claims was recognised in the amount of KGS 60,702 thousand and KGS 48,350
thousand, respectively (Note 18). Management believes that disclosure of full information as required by IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets may prejudice the position of the Group in such disputes, and opts not to disclose as permitted by IAS 37.
Taxation
Commercial legislation of the Kyrgyz Republic and Republic of Tajikistan, including tax legislation, may allow more than one interpretation. In
addition, there is a risk of tax authorities making arbitrary judgements of business activities. If a particular treatment, based on management’s
judgement of the Group’s business activities, was to be challenged by the tax authorities, the Group may be assessed additional taxes,
penalties and interest.
Such uncertainty could, in particular, refer to the valuation of financial instruments, formation of provisions for impairment and determination
the level of price indexes on transactions. Additionally such uncertainty may relate to the valuation of temporary differences on the provision
and recovery of the provision for impairment losses on loans to customers and receivables, as an underestimation of the taxable profit. The
management of the Group believes that it has accrued all tax amounts due and therefore no allowance has been made in the consolidated
financial statements.
Operating environment
Emerging markets such as Kyrgyz Republic are subject to different risks than more developed markets, including economic, political and
social, and legal and legislative risks. Laws and regulations affecting businesses in Kyrgyz Republic continue to change rapidly, tax and
regulatory frameworks are subject to varying interpretations. The future economic direction of Kyrgyz Republic is heavily influenced by the
fiscal and monetary policies adopted by the government, together with developments in the legal, regulatory, and political environment.

59

KOMPANION BANK CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY (formerly Kompanion Financial Group Microfinance CJSC)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is paid to the substance of the relationship rather than only their legal status.
The Group had the following transactions outstanding with related parties:
31 DECEMBER 2015

31 DECEMBER 2014

RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

TOTAL CATEGORY
AS PER FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS CAPTION

RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

TOTAL CATEGORY
AS PER FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS CAPTION

18,262

1,317,656

18,253

645,692

616,943

4,584,664

–

–

Organizations under
common control

Amounts due from
banks and other financial
institutions
Shareholders

Amounts due to banks and
other financial institutions
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Included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014
there are the following amounts which arose due to transactions with related parties:
YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015

RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

TOTAL CATEGORY
AS PER FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS CAPTION

RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

TOTAL CATEGORY
AS PER FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS CAPTION

3,524

1,671,875

628

1,463,901

37,398

493,863

–

–

1,508

16,433

4,954

14,063

29,223

397,134

23,374

365,369

Organizations under
common control
Interest income

YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2014

Shareholders
Interest expense

Other income
Compensation to key
management personnel
Salary and related taxes

As of 31 December 2015, key management personnel comprised of 13 members (2014: 13 members).

24. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The estimate of fair value is intended to approximate the amount to sell the asset or transfer the liability between knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arm’s length transaction. However, considering the uncertainties and the use of judgements, the fair value should not be
interpreted as realisable within the framework of an immediate sale of assets or the transfer of liabilities.
The estimated fair values of financial assets and liabilities are calculated using discounted cash flow techniques based on estimated future
cash flows and discount rates for similar instruments at the reporting date.
Fair value hierarchy
For the purpose of disclosing the fair values, the Group determined classes of assets and liabilities based on the assets and liabilities nature,
characteristics and risks as well as the hierarchy of fair value sources.
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DATE OF QUOTED PRICES SIGNIFICANT
VALUATION
IN ACTIVE OBSERVABLE
MARKETS
INPUTS
(LEVEL 1)
(LEVEL 2)
31 December 2015

SIGNIFICANT
NONOBSERVABLE
INPUTS
(LEVEL 3)

TOTAL

Assets measured at fair value
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

31 December 2015

–

443,700

–

443,700

Amounts due from banks and other financial
institutions

31 December 2015

1,317,656

–

–

1,317,656

Loans to customers

31 December 2015

–

4,101,038

–

4,101,038

Other financial assets

31 December 2015

–

16,166

–

16,166

31 December 2015

–

4,584,664

–

4,584,664

–

62,796

–

62,796

31 December 2015

–

8,128

–

8,128

31 December 2014

–

453,254

–

453,254

Amounts due from banks and other financial
institutions

31 December 2014

645,692

–

–

645,692

Loans to customers

31 December 2014

–

4,475,121

–

4,475,121

Other financial assets

31 December 2014

–

17,013

–

17,013

Assets whose fair value is disclosed

Liabilities whose fair value is disclosed
Amounts due to banks and other financial
institutions
Subordinated debt
Other financial liabilities
31 December 2014
Assets measured at fair value
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Assets whose fair value is disclosed
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DATE OF
VALUATION

QUOTED PRICES
IN ACTIVE MARKETS
(LEVEL 1)

SIGNIFICANT
OBSERVABLE INPUTS
(LEVEL 2)

SIGNIFICANT
NON OBSERVABLE
INPUTS
(LEVEL 3)

TOTAL

Amounts due to banks
and other financial
institutions
Subordinated debt

31 December 2014

–

4,908,046

–

4,908,046

31 December 2014

–

47,501

–

47,501

Other financial liabilities

31 December 2014

–

12,542

–

12,542

Liabilities whose fair
value is disclosed

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value
Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Bank’s financial instruments that are not carried at fair value in the
statement of financial position. The table does not include the fair values of non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities.

2015

2014

Carrying value

Fair value

Unrecognised
(loss)/income

Carrying amount

Fair
value

Unrecognised
(loss)/income

1,317,656

1,317,656

–

645,692

645,692

–

4,101,038

4,347,161

246,123

4,475,121

4,760,269

285,148

16,166

16,166

–

17,013

17,013

–

4,584,664

4,165,372

(419,292)

4,908,046

4,372,177

(535,869)

62,796

45,605

(17,191)

47,501

35,229

(12,272)

8,128

8,128

–

12,542

12,542

–

Financial assets
Amounts due from
banks and other
financial institutions
Loans to customers
Other financial assets
Financial liabilities
Amounts due to
banks and other
financial institutions
Subordinated debt
Other financial
liabilities
Total unrecognised
change in
unrealized fair
value

(190,360)

(262,993)
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25. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to the Shareholder through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Management of the Group reviews the capital structure on a regular basis. As part of this review, management considers the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the management, the Group balances its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

26. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES
Management of risk is an essential element of the Group’s operations. The main risks inherent to the Group’s operations are:
• credit risk;
• operational risk;
• liquidity risk;
• market risk.
The Group recognises that it is essential to have efficient and effective risk management processes in place. To enable this, the Group has established
a risk management framework, whose main purpose is to protect the Group from risk and allow it to achieve its performance objectives.
Risk management policies and procedures
The Group’s risk management policies aim to identify, analyse and manage the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls,
and to monitor continuously risk levels and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and procedures are reviewed regularly to reflect changes
in market conditions, goods and services offered and emerging best practice.
The Board of Directors of the Group has overall responsibility for the oversight of the risk management framework, overseeing the management of
key risks as well as approving significantly large transactions.
The Management Board of the Group is responsible for monitoring and implementation of risk mitigation measures and making sure that the Group
operates within the established risk parameters. Each department is responsible for direct management of the relevant risks, and together with the
legal department continuously monitors compliance with currently effective legislation.
Credit, market and liquidity risks are controlled through a system of different committees.
Both external and internal risk factors are identified and managed throughout the organisational structure of the Group.
Through the risk management framework, the Group manages the following risks:
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Credit risk
The Group is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial loss.
Risk management and monitoring is performed within set limits of authority, by the Credit Committees and the Group’s Management. Before any
application is made by the Credit Committee, all recommendations on credit processes (borrower’s limits approved, or amendments made to
loan agreements, etc.) are reviewed and approved by the Branch Management. Daily risk management is performed by the Credit Administration
Department.
The Group has developed policies and procedures for the management of credit exposures including guidelines to limit portfolio concentration and
the establishment of a Credit Committee, which actively monitors the Group’s credit risk. The Group’s credit policy is reviewed and approved by the
Board of Directors. The Group establishes limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one borrower, or group of borrowers, and to industry
segments. Actual exposures against limits are monitored daily.
Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential borrowers to meet interest and capital repayment
obligations and by changing these lending limits where appropriate. Exposure to credit risk is also managed in part by obtaining collateral and
corporate and personal guarantees but a significant portion is personal lending, where no such facilities can be obtained. Such risks are monitored
on a continuous basis and subject to annual or more frequent reviews.
Operational risk
The Group is exposed to operational risk which is the risk of losses that can be a result of any system inefficiencies or breaks of internal process,
systems, presence of human error or effect of any external negative factor.
The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and analyse this risk to set appropriate risk limits and controls.
Maximum exposure
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk varies significantly and is dependent on both individual risks and general market economy risks.
The following table presents the maximum exposure to credit risk of balance sheet and off balance sheet financial assets and contingent liabilities. For
financial assets in the consolidated statement of financial position, the maximum exposure equals to the carrying amount value of those assets prior
to any offset or collateral. For financial guarantees and other off balance sheet assets contingent liabilities, the maximum exposure to credit risk is
the maximum amount the Group would have to pay if the guarantee was called on or in the case of commitments, if the loan amount was called on.
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AS OF 31 DECEMBER
2015

1,317,656

–

1,317,656

–

NET EXPOSURE
AFTER OFFSET
AND COLLATERAL
1,317,656

443,700

–

443,700

–

443,700

4,101,038

–

4,101,038

1,769,148

2,331,890

16,166

–

16,166

–

16,166

MAXIMUM EXPOSURE

OFFSET

NET EXPOSURE
AFTER OFFSET

COLLATERAL

NET EXPOSURE
AFTER OFFSET
AND COLLATERAL

Amounts due from
banks and other financial
institutions

645,692

–

645,692

–

645,692

Financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss

453,254

–

453,254

–

453,254

4,475,121

–

4,475,121

266,895

4,208,226

17,013

–

17,013

–

17,013

Amounts due from
banks and other financial
institutions
Financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss
Loans to customers
Other financial assets

AS OF 31 DECEMBER
2014

Loans to customers

Other financial assets

MAXIMUM EXPOSURE

OFFSET NET EXPOSURE AFTER
OFFSET

COLLATERAL

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group did not hold any international rated financial assets.
The banking industry is generally exposed to credit risk regarding financial instruments. The credit risk exposure of the Group is concentrated within
the Kyrgyz Republic. The exposure is monitored on a regular basis to ensure that the credit limits and credit worthiness guidelines established by the
Group’s credit and risk management policy are not breached.
In determining the credit risk of financial assets, which do not have ratings, the Group uses internal scoring models based on risk ranking criteria.
The scoring model takes into consideration the financial performance of the borrower, the ability of repayment and any delays in repayment and
the collateral pledged against any borrowings. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment.
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The Group manages credit risk of financial assets by use of an internal rating system. Loans to customers are classified based on internal evaluations
and other analytical procedures, branches and Credit Administration Department classify loans according to their risk and the risk of potential losses,
with classifications subject to the approval of the Credit Committee.
Standard loans
The financial condition of the borrower is assessed as stable and there is no indication of any external or internal factors to suggest that the financial
condition of the borrower has deteriorated. In case there are some minor negative indicators, the Group has confidence that the borrower will be
able to cope with such (temporary) difficulties. Interest and principal are repaid in full and in a timely manner and/or existing delinquencies in interest
do not exceed 30 days. The borrower is considered not impaired as having the ability to repay the loan in accordance with its terms and conditions.
Doubtful category 1
There is evidence of a temporary deterioration in the financial condition of the borrower, including a decrease in income or a loss of market share.
The borrower repays the loan principal and the interest without delay and in full. Key characteristics are overdue amounts from 31 to 90 days,
prolongation of loan, and the repayment of the loan depends to an extent on the realisation of collateral. The amount of collateral is sufficient to
cover principal amount, interest income accrued, and expenses related to the sale of collateral.
Doubtful category 2
The deterioration in the financial condition of the borrower has reached a critical level, including significant operating losses, a loss of market position,
negative equity and it is probable that the borrower will be unable to repay the loan and the interest in full. The possibility of loss of doubtful assets
is very high, but due to several specific expected factors, that could improve the quality of asset, its classification as loss is deferred until a more
precise assessment can be performed. Key characteristics are overdue amounts from 91 to 180 days, or the quality of collateral has deteriorated since
origination or it is absent.
Losses
In the absence of any information to the contrary, the borrower’s financial condition and operations have reached the point where it is evident that
the borrower cannot repay the loan and the collateral value is negligible. The loan is uncollateralised or the value of the collateral covers less than
50 per cent of the borrowers’ outstanding debt. Key characteristics are overdue amounts over 180 days, prolongation over 3 times or inability or
refusal of the borrower to repay the loan, or absence of the borrower. Once all legal measures to recover the loan have been exhausted, the loan is
accounted for as off-balance for five years in case of possible repayment.
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Gross loans to customers before allowance for impairment by categories:
31 DECEMBER 2015

LOANS ISSUED TO CUSTOMERS

PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT

LOANS ISSUED TO CUSTOMERS

4,292,549

234,802

4,057,747

Past due up to 30 days, but not
impaired

28,837

1,577

27,260

Past due from 30 days to 90 days, but
not impaired

10,066

551

9,515

3,726

204

3,522

32

2

30

5,676

2,712

2,964

56,950

56,950

–

4,397,836

296,798

4,101,038

Standard loans, assessed on
collective basis
Not overdue and not impaired

Past due from 90 days to 180 days,
but not impaired
Past due more than 180 days, but not
impaired
Individually impaired
Doubtful category 2
Losses
Total
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31 DECEMBER 2014

LOANS ISSUED TO CUSTOMERS

PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT

LOANS ISSUED TO CUSTOMERS

4,643,857

190,242

4,453,615

Past due up to 30 days, but not
impaired

9,269

384

8,885

Past due 30 days to 90 days, but
not impaired

1,116

46

1,070

Past due 90 days to 180 days, but
not impaired

599

25

575

Past due more than 180 days, but
not impaired

128

5

123

Doubtful category 1

5,123

2,418

2,705

Doubtful category 2

15,920

7,771

8,149

Losses

27,450

27,450

–

4,703,462

228,341

4,475,121

Standard loans, assessed on
collective basis
Not overdue and not impaired

Individually impaired

Total

Geographical concentration
The management of the Bank exercises control over the risk in the legislation and regulatory arena and assesses its influence on the Group’s activity.
This approach allows the Group to minimise potential losses from the investment climate fluctuations in the Kyrgyz Republic.
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The geographical concentration of assets and liabilities is shown below:
31 DECEMBER 2015

KYRGYZ REPUBLIC

COUNTRIES
OECD

CIS COUNTRIES

TOTAL

Amounts due from banks and
other financial institutions

1,299,394

–

18,262

1,317,656

Loans to customers

4,101,038

–

–

4,101,038

393,350

50,350

–

443,700

16,166

–

–

16,166

5,809,948

50,350

18,262

5,878,560

280,771

4,303,893

–

4,584,664

–

62,796

–

62,796

8,128

–

–

8,128

288,899

4,366,689

–

4,655,588

5,521,049

(4,316,339)

18,262

KYRGYZ REPUBLIC

COUNTRIES
OECD

CIS COUNTRIES

TOTAL

Amounts due from banks and
other financial institutions

627,439

–

18,253

645,692

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

393,835

59,419

–

453,254

4,475,121

–

–

4,475,121

17,013

–

–

17,013

5,513,408

59,419

18,253

5,591,080

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Other financial assets
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Amounts due to banks and
other financial institutions
Subordinated debt
Other financial liabilities
TOTAL FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES
NET POSITION

31 DECEMBER 2014
FINANCIAL ASSETS

Loans to customers
Other financial assets
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS
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31 DECEMBER 2014

KYRGYZ
REPUBLIC

COUNTRIES
OECD

CIS
COUNTRIES

TOTAL

215,805

4,692,241

–

4,908,046

–

47,501

–

47,501

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Amounts due to banks and other financial institutions
Subordinated debt

Other financial liabilities
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
NET POSITION

12,542
228,347

–
4,739,742

–
–

5,285,061

(4,680,323)

18,253

12,542
4,968,089

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to availability of funds to repay liabilities as they fall due and meeting the demand in cash in the process of crediting customers.
The Management controls these types of risks by means of maturity analysis, determining the Group’s strategy for the next financial period. Current
liquidity is managed by the Chief Financial Officer, which supports current liquidity on sufficient level to minimise the liquidity risk.
The analysis of the balance sheet interest rate and liquidity risk is presented in the following table:
31 DECEMBER
2015
FINANCIAL ASSETS

LESS THAN
1 MONTHS

1-3 MONTHS

3 MONTHS –
1 YEAR

1 YEAR –
5 YEARS

OVER
5 YEARS

TOTAL

Amounts due from
banks and other
financial institutions
Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss
Loans to customers

932,287

–

–

17,625

–

949,912

142,883

225,619

20,292

54,906

–

443,700

506,029

850,275

2,150,957

631,649

27,200

4,166,110

Total interestbearing financial
assets
Amounts due from
banks and other
financial institutions

1,581,199

1,075,894

2,171,249

704,180

27,200

5,559,722

367,689

55

–

–

–

367,744
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LESS THAN
1 MONTHS

1-3 MONTHS

3 MONTHS –
1 YEAR

1 YEAR –
5 YEARS

OVER
5 YEARS

TOTAL

1,900

1,945

11,909

412

–

16,166

1,950,788

1,077,894

2,183,158

704,592

27,200

5,943,632

Amounts due
to banks and
other financial
institutions
Subordinated debt

193,601

540,559

1,831,110

1,920,782

115,527

4,601,579

–

2,077

–

60,719

–

62,796

Total interest
bearing financial
liabilities
Other financial
liabilities
TOTAL FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES
Difference
between assets
and liabilities
Difference between
interest-bearing
assets and
liabilities
Difference between
assets and
liabilities bearing
accumulated
interest
Difference between
assets and
liabilities bearing
accumulated
interest in percent
to the total amount
of assets

193,601

542,636

1,831,110

1,981,501

115,527

4,664,375

8,128

–

–

–

–

8,128

201,729

542,636

1,831,110

1,981,501

115,527

4,672,503

1,749,059

535,258

352,048

(1,276,909)

(88,327)

1,387,598

533,258

340,139

(1,277,321)

(88,327)

1,387,598

1,920,856

2,260,995

983,674

895,347

22%

31%

36%

16%

14%

31 DECEMBER
2015

Other financial
assets
TOTAL FINANCIAL
ASSETS
FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES
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31 DECEMBER 2014
FINANCIAL ASSETS

LESS THAN
1 MONTHS

1-3 3 MONTHS –
MONTHS
1 YEAR

1 YEAR –
5 YEARS

OVER
5 YEARS

TOTAL

Amounts due from banks and other financial institutions

127,344

–

628

17,625

–

145,597

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

106,940

200,955

140,624

4,735

–

453,254

Loans to customers

520,461

905,624

2,441,666

593,780

94,815

4,556,346

Total interest-bearing financial assets

754,745

1,106,579

2,582,918

616,140

94,815

5,155,197

Amounts due from banks

500,095

–

–

–

–

500,095

1,243

1,659

10,044

4,067

–

17,013

1,256,083

1,108,238

2,592,962

620,207

94,815

5,672,305

868,925

217,630

1,538,252

2,175,424

124,769

4,925,000

–

392

–

–

47,109

47,501

868,925

218,022

1,538,252

2,175,424

171,878

4,972,501

12,542

–

–

–

–

12,542

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

881,467

218,022

1,538,252

2,175,424

171,878

4,985,043

Difference between assets and liabilities

374,616

890,216

1,054,710 (1,555,217)

(77,063)

(114,180)

888,557

Other financial assets
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Amounts due to banks and financial institutions
Subordinated debt
Total interest bearing financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities

Difference between interest-bearing assets and liabilities

1,044,666

(1,559,284)

(77,063)
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31 DECEMBER 2014
Difference between assets and liabilities bearing
accumulated interest
Difference between assets and liabilities bearing
accumulated interest in percent to the total amount of
assets

LESS THAN
1 MONTHS
(114,180)
(2%)

1-3 3 MONTHS –
MONTHS
1 YEAR
774,377
1,819,043
13%

1 YEAR –
5 YEARS
259,759

OVER
5 YEARS
182,696

4%

3%

31%

TOTAL

Substantially all of the Group’s interest earning assets are at fixed rates of interest and interest bearing liabilities are at both fixed and floating rates.
Asset and liability maturity periods and the ability to replace interest liabilities at an acceptable cost when they mature are crucial in determining the
Group’s liquidity and its susceptibility to fluctuation of interest rates and exchange rates.
A further analysis of the liquidity and interest rate risks is presented in the following tables in accordance with IFRS 7. The amounts disclosed in these
tables do not correspond to the amounts recorded on the consolidated statement of financial position as the presentation below includes a maturity
analysis for financial liabilities that indicates the total remaining undiscounted contractual payments (including interest payments), which are not
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position.
31 DECEMBER
2015
FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES
Amounts due
to banks and
other financial
institutions
Subordinated
debt
TOTAL
FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

WEIGHTED
AVERAGE
EFFECTIVE
INTEREST RATE

LESS THAN
1 MONTHS

1-3 MONTHS

3 MONTHS –
1 YEAR

1 YEAR –
5 YEARS

OVER
5 YEARS

TOTAL

10.98%

121,832

509,576

1,533,765

2,940,350

535,534

5,641,057

11.14%

–

3,188

3,188

92,465

–

98,841

121,832

512,764

1,536,953

3,032,815

535,534

5,739,898
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31 DECEMBER
2014
FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES
Amounts due
to banks and
other financial
institutions
Subordinated
debt

WEIGHTED
AVERAGE
EFFECTIVE
INTEREST RATe

LESS THAN
1 MONTHS

1-3 MONTHS

3 MONTHS –
1 YEAR

1 YEAR –
5 YEARS

OVER
5 YEARS

TOTAL

9.83%

909,269

284,082

1,821,241

2,401,533

186,093

5,602,218

11.14%

416

1,223

3,710

4,946

52,055

62,350

909,685

285,305

1,824,951

2,406,479

238,148

5,664,568

TOTAL
FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

Market risk
Market risk covers interest rate risk, currency risk and other pricing risks to which the Group is exposed. There have been no changes as to the way
the Group measures risk or to the risk it is exposed in 2015.
The Group is exposed to interest rate risks as it borrows funds at both fixed and floating rates. The risk is managed by the Group maintaining an
appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings.
Product Development Management and Treasury Departments also manage interest rate and market risks by matching the Group’s interest rate
position, which provides the Group with a positive interest margin. Planning and Analysis Department conducts monitoring of the Group’s current
financial performance, estimates the Group’s sensitivity to changes in interest rates and its influence on the Group’s profitability.
Interest rate sensitivity risk
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 1% increase or decrease in interest rates in 2015 and 2014, respectively. Management of the
Group believes that given the current economic conditions in the Kyrgyz Republic that a 1% increase is a realistic movement in the interest rates.
This is the sensitivity rate used when reporting interest rate internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
possible change in interest rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding assets and liabilities with floating rates.
Impact on net profit based on asset values as at 31 December 2015 and 2014:
31 DECEMBER 2015

31 DECEMBER 2014

Interest rate +1%

Interest rate -1%

Interest rate +1%

Interest rate -1%

5,009

(5,009)

(12,204)

12,204

5,009

(5,009)

(12,204)

12,204

Liabilities
Amounts due to banks and
other financial institutions

Net impact on profit before
tax

75
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Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s financial position
and cash flows are exposed to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The Management manages currency risk by defining open currency
position based on assumed KGS depreciation and other macroeconomic indicators, which allows the Group to minimise losses from significant
fluctuation of local and foreign currency exchange rates.
The Group enters into various derivative financial instruments, including foreign exchange swaps and secured loans with commercial banks to
minimise exchange risk. The result from such transactions for 2015 and 2014 was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income account as a loss of KGS 298,774 thousand and KGS 249,751 thousand, respectively.
Information on the Groups currency risk level is given below:
31 December 2015

KGS

USD Other currencies

Total

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Amounts due from banks and other financial institutions

147,795

1,161,384

8,477

1,317,656

(1,868,831)

2,312,531

–

443,700

4,101,038

–

–

4,101,038

16,166

–

–

16,166

2,396,168

3,473,915

8,477

5,878,560

1,374,242

3,210,422

–

4,584,664

–

62,796

–

62,796

4,987

3,141

–

8,128

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

1,379,229

3,276,359

–

4,655,588

OPEN BALANCE SHEET POSITION

1,016,939

197,556

8,477

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Loans to customers
Other financial assets
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Amounts due to banks and other financial institutions
Subordinated debt
Other financial liabilities

31 December 2014

KGS

USD

Other currencies

Total

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Amounts due from banks and
other financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Loans to customers

272,684

365,121

7,887

645,692

(2,824,226)

3,277,480

–

453,254

4,475,121
17,013

–

–

–

–

4,475,121

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS

1,940,592

3,642,601

7,887

5,591,080

Other financial assets

17,013
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31 December 2014

KGS

USD

Other currencies

Total

1,436,783

3,488,217

–

4,925,000

–

12,542
1,449,325

47,501

–
3,535,718

–

47,501

491,267

106,883

7,887

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Amounts due to banks and
other financial institutions
Subordinated debt

Other financial liabilities
TOTAL FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES
OPEN BALANCE SHEET
POSITION

–
–

12,542
4,985,043

The above Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk shows swap agreements on a net basis, included in derivative financial instruments
(Note 15). The gross exposure of the Group on derivative financial instruments is shown below:
KGS

US DOLLARS

TOTAL

31 December 2015

(1,868,831)

2,312,531

443,700

31 December 2014

(2,824,226)

3,277,480

453,254

Derivative financial instruments

Currency risk sensitivity
The tables below indicate the currencies to which the Group had significant exposure at 31 December on its monetary assets and liabilities, and
forecasted future cashflows. The analysis calculates the effect of a reasonably possible movement of the currency rate against the Kyrgyz Som on the
statement of profit or loss (due to the fair value of currency sensitive non-trading monetary assets and liabilities). The effect on equity does not differ
from the effect on the statement of profit or loss. A negative amount in the table reflects a potential net reduction in statement of profit or loss or
equity, while a positive amount reflects a net potential increase.
Impact on net profit based on asset values as at 31 December 2014 and 2013:
31 DECEMBER 2015

31 DECEMBER 2014
KGS/USD

Possible exchange rate
fluctuation
Impact on profit and loss
before tax

KGS/USD

+20%

-10%

+30%

-30%

41,207

(20,603)

32,065

(32,065)
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Limitations of sensitivity analysis
The above tables demonstrate the effect of a change in a key assumption while other assumptions remain unchanged. In reality, there is a correlation
between the assumptions and other factors. It should also be noted that these sensitivities are non-linear, and larger or smaller impacts should not
be interpolated or extrapolated from these results.
The sensitivity analyses do not take into consideration that the Group’s assets and liabilities are actively managed. Additionally, the financial position
of the Group may vary at the time that any actual market movement occurs. For example, the Group’s financial risk management strategy aims to
manage the exposure to market fluctuations. As investment markets move past various trigger levels, management actions could include selling
investments, changing investment portfolio allocation and taking other protective action.

27. MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled. See Note 26 “Risk
management” for the Group’s contractual undiscounted repayment obligations.
2015
WITHIN ONE YEAR
Amounts due from
banks and other
financial institutions
Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss
Loans to customers
Property and
equipment and
intangible assets
Deferred income tax
asset
Other assets
Total
Amounts due to
banks and other
financial institutions
Subordinated debt
Current income tax
liabilities
Deferred income tax
liabilities

2014

1,317,656

MORE THAN
ONE YEAR
–

TOTAL WITHIN ONE YEAR
645,692

MORE THAN
ONE YEAR
–

1,317,656

388,794

54,906

3,452,480

TOTAL
645,692

443,700

448,519

4,735

453,254

648,558

4,101,038

3,798,801

676,320

4,475,121

–

342,700

342,700

–

321,264

321,264

–

8,884

8,884

–

–

–

50,779

440

51,219

48,189

4,067

52,256

5,209,709

1,055,488

6,265,197

4,941,201

1,006,386

5,947,587

2,555,840

2,028,824

4,584,664

2,615,771

2,292,275

4,908,046

2,077

60,719

62,796

392

47,109

47,501

11,359

–

11,359

1,246

–

1,246

–

–

–

–

1,570

1,570
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2015
WITHIN ONE YEAR
Other liabilities

275,909

2014

MORE THAN
ONE YEAR

TOTAL WITHIN ONE YEAR

–

275,909

214,778

MORE THAN
ONE YEAR

TOTAL

–

214,778

Total

2,845,185

2,089,543

4,934,728

2,832,187

2,340,954

5,173,141

Net

2,364,524

(1,034,055)

1,330,469

2,109,014

(1,334,568)

774,446

28. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On 11 January 2016, the National Bank of the Kyrgyz Republic issued license No. 053 to the Bank for banking operations in the national currency and
license No. 053/1 for banking operations in the foreign currency.
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МИССИЯ И ЦЕ ЛИ КОМПАНЬОНА
Миссия Компаньона - быть ведущим финансовым институтом по развитию сообществ в
Центральной Азии.

ЦЕЛИ КОМПАНЬОНА:

Содействовать росту малого бизнеса
и развитию возможностей социального
предпринимательства
Помочь клиентам создать здоровые
и финансово стабильные сообщества
Поддерживать сохранение природных ресурсов и
содействовать практике их рационального
использования клиентами и сообществами
Оценивать успех на основе реальных изменений
Возглавить инновации социального бизнеса
в Центральной Азии
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ОБРАЩЕНИЕ РУКОВОДСТВА
Уважаемые партнеры, дорогие друзья!
Прошедший год для нас был ознаменован рядом значительных качественных преобразований, направленных на совершенствование Компаньона как надежного финансового института по развитию сообществ в Центральной Азии.
Одним из важнейших событий для нас стало вхождение в состав акционеров Компаньона
европейских инвесторов с высоким долгосрочным кредитным рейтингом AAA.
Привлечение прямых голландских инвестиций в финансовый сектор страны имеет высокое
значение не только для Компаньона, но и для экономики Кыргызстана в целом.
В 2015 году мы сделали важный шаг на пути реализации стратегии развития компании.
Благодаря приверженности делу и высокому профессионализму сотрудников Компаньона
была проделана основная часть работы по подготовке к преобразованию в банковское учреждение. Как результат, 7 октября 2015 года Национальный банк Кыргызской Республики
вынес постановление о выдаче предварительного разрешения на открытие ЗАО «Банк Компаньон». 20 ноября ЗАО МФК «Финансовая Группа Компаньон» прошло перерегистрацию в
Министерстве юстиции КР и было переименовано в ЗАО «Банк Компаньон».
Компаньон, созданный в 2004 году как микрокредитная компания, прошел все стадии
институционального развития и сегодня является устойчивой финансовой организацией с
активами в 6.2 млрд сомов и уставным капиталом в 1 млрд 600 тыс. сомов. С момента учреждения мы значительно расширили свое присутствие на рынке Кыргызстана. Сегодня у
нас 108 отделений по всей стране, 113 тысяч клиентов и 900 сотрудников.
Достичь таких высоких показателей удалось только благодаря доверию наших клиентов и
партнеров, поддержке и содействию акционеров и инвесторов и высокой компетентности
наших сотрудников, которые вносят неоценимый вклад в развитие Компаньона.
Мы ценим наш многолетний опыт на финансовом рынке, гордимся своей историей с безупречной репутацией, мы выходим на новый уровень развития и приглашаем с собой наших
клиентов, партнеров и сотрудников!

С уважением,
Уланбек Термечиков
Председатель правления
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ОСНОВНЫЕ ФИНАНСОВЫЕ ПОКАЗАТЕЛИ
2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

ОБЩЕЕ
КОЛИЧЕСТВО
КЛИЕНТОВ

8 591

12 221

21 803

40 326

70 812

99 386

119 396

137 310

116 719

108 596

115 167

113 332

КРЕДИТНЫЙ
ПОРТФЕЛЬ
(МЛН. СОМ1)

132

158

272

768

1 119

1 330

1 959

2 764

2 600

4 010

4 739

4 415

ПОРТФЕЛЬ
ПОД РИСКОМ

0,9%

0,8%

0,4%

0,2%

0,5%

0,5%

0,3%

0,3%

0,9%

0,3%

0,7%

1,4%

КОЛИЧЕСТВО
СОТРУДНИКОВ

151

138

173

503

801

835

929

1 038

1 062

915

823

903

КОЛИЧЕСТВО
ОФИСОВ

32

29

42

56

81

82

92

157

161

141

124

108

ССТР (СОВОКУПНЫЙ СРЕДНЕГОДОВОЙ ТЕМП РОСТА2)
ОБЩЕЕ КОЛИЧЕСТВО

КРЕДИТНЫЙ

ПОРТФЕЛЬ

КЛИЕНТОВ

27%

39%

КОЛИЧЕСТВО

КОЛИЧЕСТВО

СОТРУДНИКОВ

17%

ОФИСОВ

13%

1 - обменный курс НБКР по состоянию на 31 декабря 2015 года, составил 75.8993 сомов к 1 доллару США
2 - ССТР - совокупный среднегодовAой темп роста расчитывается по формуле
((Портфель 2015 г. / Портфель 2004 г.) ^ (1/10)-1)
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ОСНОВНЫЕ ФИНАНСОВЫЕ ПОКАЗАТЕЛИ
ДОХОД (ТЫС. СОМОВ)
250 000

чистый доход
чистый
операционный
доход

200 000
150 000
100 000
50 000
$0
‘05

-50 000

‘06

‘07

‘08

‘09

‘10

‘11

‘12

‘13

‘14

‘15

АКТИВЫ (ТЫС. СОМОВ)

капитал

7 000 000

активы

6 000 000
5 000 000
4 000 000
3 000 000
2 000 000
1 000 000
0
‘05

‘06

‘07

‘08

‘09

‘10

‘11

‘12

‘13

‘14

‘15
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НАШИ АКЦИОНЕРЫ
ПРИВЛЕЧЕНИЕ ПРЯМЫХ ГОЛЛАНДСКИХ ИНВЕСТИЦИЙ
В ЭКОНОМИКУ КЫРГЫЗСТАНА
В марте 2015 года ЗАО МФК «Финансовая Группа Компаньон» перешло на новый уровень развития,
увеличив уставной капитал с 650,4 млн сомов до 1 млрд 616 тыс. сомов. В состав акционеров компании вошли европейские инвесторы. Новые акционеры представлены международным финансово-кредитным учреждением и фондами Голландии и Люксембурга, имеющими социальную и инновационную направленность. Привлечение прямых голландских инвестиций в экономику Кыргызстана
стало важнейшим этапом развития не только для компании, но и для всего финансового сектора
страны. Компаньоном сделан важный шаг по установлению долгосрочных экономических отношений между Кыргызстаном и Голландией, которые организация планирует интенсивно укреплять и
развивать в дальнейшем.

MERCY CORPS (КОРПУС МИЛОСЕРДИЯ)
Основным акционером и держателем 65 % акций остается учредитель Компаньона - международная неправительственная организация по экономическому развитию
и помощи Корпус Милосердия. Организация работает в Кыргызстане с 1994 года, осуществляя ряд национальных и региональных программ, нацеленных на создание
здоровых и финансово стабильных сообществ на основе принципов гражданского общества.

TRIODOS SICAV II - TRIODOS MICROFINANCE FUN
Инвестиционный фонд Triodos Sicav II - Triodos Microfinance Fund (TMF), основанный в марте 2009 года в качестве суб-фонда Triodos SICAV II, занимается инвестициями
в финансовые услуги для людей с низким уровнем дохода в развивающихся странах. Triodos SICAV II с активами около 200 млн евро находится под надзором органа по
регулированию финансовых рынков Люксембурга.
За счет увеличения акций Triodos Sicav II является держателем 8,75% акций Компаньона с общим объемом инвестиций в сумме 122 068 250 сомов.
TRIODOS FAIR SHARE FUND
Инвестиционный фонд Triodos Fair Share Fund (TFSF) был основан в 2002 г. Фонд с активами более 2 млн евро финансирует микрофинансовые учреждения в развивающихся странах посредством предоставления кредитов и участия в акционерном капитале банков и микрофинансовых организаций. TFSF является первым инвестиционным фондом, которому был присужден официальный статус социально-этического инвестиционного института в соответствии с требованиями Нидерландского
законодательства к социальным и этическим инвестициям.
Triodos Fair Share Fund является держателем 8,75% акций с общим объемом инвестиций в сумме 122 068 250 сомов.
FMO (ГОЛЛАНДСКИЙ БАНК РАЗВИТИЯ)
Голландский банк развития (FMO) учрежден в 1970 г. в Гааге, Нидерланды. Государственная доля в лице Министерства финансов Нидерландов в структуре капитала FMO составляет 51% акций. Остальные 49% принадлежат крупным нидерландским банкам, различным
учреждениям и частным лицам. Банку с активами 6,4 млрд евро присвоен международный кредитный рейтинг AAA.
Основная деятельность FMO заключается в предоставлении кредитов, гарантий и капитала предприятиям частного сектора в развивающихся странах.
Организация специализируется в следующих отраслях: финансовые учреждения, энергетика и сельское хозяйство, продовольственная
безопасность и обеспечение питьевой водой.
За счет увеличения акций Компании, FMO является держателем 17,5% акций с общим объемом инвестиций в сумме 244 136 500 сомов.
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КРЕДИТНЫЕ ПРОДУКТЫ
В 2015 году деятельность Компаньона была сконцентрирована на процессе трансформации в Банк с целью успешного вхождения и дальнейшего функционирования на банковском рынке. Получение банковской лицензии – это возможность усилить свое влияние на развитие сообществ
путем расширения спектра продуктов и услуг. Был расширен и целевой сегмент клиентов - в число приоритетных клиентов стали входить малые
и средние предприятия, которые могут воздействовать на местную экономику на системном уровне. Для удовлетворения нужд нового сегмента
были разработаны новые и улучшены существующие кредитные продукты. Для запуска новых кредитов были разработаны и внедрены новые
бизнес-процессы, произведен найм и обучение новых сотрудников.

НА КОНЕЦ 2015 ГОДА КРЕДИТНЫЙ ПОРТФЕЛЬ
ГРУППОВОГО КРЕДИТОВАНИЯ СОСТАВИЛ  KGS 3,611,447,921,
ИНДИВИДУАЛЬНОГО -  KGS 779,986,610
Кредиты на развитие бизнеса
В целях поддержки малого и среднего бизнеса был внедрен кредитный продукт «Ишкер», который позволяет предпринимателям развивать свой
бизнес посредством осуществления инвестиций в оборудование, коммерческую недвижимость, производственные помещения, а также финансирование оборотного капитала. В 2015 году было выдано 46 кредитов на сумму 100 880 000 сомов
Для микропредпринимателей, не имеющих возможности предоставить в обеспечение кредита движимое или недвижимое имущество, был разработан беззалоговый микрокредит «Женил» под поручительство физических лиц. С момент запуска в октябре 2015 года и до конца 2015 года
было выдано более 550 микрокредитов «Женил».

Женское предпринимательство
В Компаньоне всегда уделяется особое внимание предоставлению финансирования женщинам-предпринимателям. Доля женщин, обслуживающихся в Компаньоне, в 2015 году составляет 72%. В основном преобладают женщины, получающие групповые микрокредиты. Однако количество женщин-руководителей и владелиц более крупного бизнеса, невелико, и они нуждаются в дополнительной поддержке.
В конце 2014 года был запущен специальный кредит «Айым-Инвест» для содействия женщинам-предпринимателям, которые активно занимаются малым и средним бизнесом. Кредит выдается на льготных условиях для покупки оборудования или техники, а также для других инвестиционных целей. К концу 2015 года активными клиентами являются 22 женщины-предпринимательницы с кредитным портфелем 7,4 млн. сомов.

Жилищные кредиты
Понимая, что жилищные проблемы являются важным аспектом для развития сообществ, Компаньон определил жилищное кредитование одним
из стратегических направлений кредитования. В конце 2014 года была разработана, а в 2015 году представлена линейка жилищных кредитов
«Ак-Орго». Линейка включает кредиты на покупку, улучшение и строительство жилья. На конец отчетного года кредитный портфель составляет
более 70 млн сомов.
В 2015 году Компаньон продолжил выдачу кредитов по льготным условиям из возвратных средств Программы «Жилищного финансирования»
совместно с Германским Банком развития (KFW). К концу 2015 года кредитный портфель по «Жилищным кредитам KFW» составил 133,6 млн
сомов.

Кредитование сельской местности
Компаньон участвует в Программе Германского Банка развития (KFW) «Финансирование бизнеса в сельских регионах». Целью Программы является повышение благосостояния населения в сельских регионах Кыргызстана. В рамках программы Компаньону выделено финансирование в
размере 1 млн евро сроком на шесть лет. В 2015 году были полностью освоены все средства, позволив сельским жителям получить кредиты на
развитие бизнеса.
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УСЛУГИ РАЗВИТИЯ
УСЛУГИ ПО РАЗВИТИЮ БИЗНЕСА ДЛЯ КЛИЕНТОВ
Компаньон является единственной микрофинансовой организацией в Кыргызстане, которая
содержит отдел технической поддержки, состоящий из 32 высококвалифицированных специалистов по агрономии и животноводству. Уникальный интегрированный подход Компаньона,
заключающийся в предоставлении финансовых продуктов и услуг по развитию бизнеса, позволяет клиентам повышать урожайность и производительность скота, применяя этноэкологический подход к управлению природными ресурсами и производственными активами.
В 2015 году более 12 600 активных клиентов получили консультации по развитию
сельскохозяйственного бизнеса на безвозмездной основе.
УМНЫЕ ИНВЕСТИЦИИ
В целях усиления интеграции финансовых продуктов и услуг по развитию бизнеса командой
развития разработана и внедрена концепция «умных инвестиций». Это простые и понятные
инвестиционные бизнес - идеи, сопровождаемые наглядным техническим материалом, отражающим суть идеи и дающим основные расчеты, иллюстрирующие возможные экономические выгоды клиента от сельскохозяйственного бизнеса.
Клиент Компаньона получает не только денежные средства, но и информацию о том, как
воспользоваться низкозатратными агротехниками, как улучшить производство, маркетинг
и бизнес-методы, которые требуют минимальных вложений физического и финансового капитала и приводят к повышению доходов, урожайности, увеличению производства и продовольственной безопасности.
СИСТЕМА МОНИТОРИНГА РЫНОЧНЫХ ЦЕН
Система мониторинга рыночных цен с 2012 года позволяет ежемесячно отслеживать цены на
основные сельскохозяйственные продукты (скот, семена, мясо, овощи, фрукты) на крупных
рынках во всех областях страны. На основе этой информации клиенты Компаньона принимают более выгодные решения относительно реализации своей продукции в том или ином
регионе. Рыночные цены анализируются и распространяются для клиентов во всех офисах
Компаньона.
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ИНИЦИАТИВЫ РАЗВИТИЯ
ИНИЦИАТИВЫ РАЗВИТИЯ ДЛЯ СООБЩЕСТВ
Команда развития Компаньона предоставляет возможность уязвимым сообществам в отдаленных регионах пройти годовое обучение в Полевой школе фермера по двум направлениям: «Экосад» (агрономия) и «Управление домашним скотом» (животноводство). Специалисты Компаньона помогают домохозяйствам управлять производственными активами (приусадебные участки,
скот) и природными ресурсами (летние и зимние пастбища, водные ресурсы). Применив полученные знания и навыки, домохозяйства улучшают качество урожая и повышают продуктивность скота, что приводит к увеличению их доходов.
МЕРОПРИЯТИЯ ДЛЯ СООБЩЕСТВ
Обучающие инициативы развития дополняются ежегодными масштабными мобилизационными
мероприятиями в сельской местности. Компаньон проводит сельскохозяйственные ярмарки, фестивали развития «Айыл Алга», традиционный Яблочный фестиваль. На открытую площадку мы
приглашаем производителей и покупателей сельскохозяйственной продукции, представителей
биолабораторий, питомников, владельцев племенного скота, переработчиков для заключения
взаимовыгодных контрактов и установления прямых рыночных связей. Основная цель данных
мероприятий - содействие развитию сельского хозяйства и рыночных связей для укрепления
экономического потенциала сообществ.
СИСТЕМА ОЦЕНКИ ВОЗДЕЙСТВИЯ
Система Оценки Воздействия (СОВ) – интегрированная система индикаторов, позволяющих измерять и оценивать воздействие финансовых услуг и услуг развития на домохозяйства и бизнес
клиентов, отслеживать и понимать влияние деятельности компании на самодостаточность домохозяйств и продвижение финансовой интеграции. СОВ разработана и внедрена специалистами Компаньона и является уникальным инструментом работы с данными. Система позволяет
осуществлять автоматизированный и регулярный сбор данных с использованием мобильных
устройств, хранение данных в централизованной базе и анализ данных путем применения различных аналитических и статистических методов. Согласно полученным данным СОВ, финансовые услуги и услуги развития Компаньона оказывают положительное воздействие на сельские
сообщества.
ПО ИТОГАМ ИССЛЕДОВАНИЯ ЗА 2014-2015
Процент домохозяйств

Повысили уровень дохода:

Повысили уровень потребления:

Повысили уровень сбережений:

Клиенты

43%

40 %

32,56%

Участники инициатив развития

43%

46%

58,61%
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ИСТОРИИ УСПЕХА НАШИХ К ЛИЕНТОВ
Трудолюбивые люди удачливы во всех начинаниях!
Беризат Иманалиева сотрудничает с Компаньоном с 2005 года. Она берет кредитные средства уже в
тринадцатый раз и успешно развивает свой бизнес. В 2005 году Беризат от коллег по работе узнала,
что Компаньон предлагает жителям села кредиты на развитие сельскохозяйственного бизнеса. На
тот момент Беризат с супругом Мелисом держали небольшое хозяйство, но так как подрастали трое
сыновей, которых надо было учить, весь скот пришлось продать. Тогда супруги приняли решение
взять групповой кредит на покупку коровы. Через год, успешно погасив кредит, семья взяла следующий на покупку лошади и строительство сарая. Животные давали приплод, доход семьи постепенно
увеличивался. Посадили яблоневый сад. Мелис активно консультировался с агрономом Компаньона,
потому что доступа к другим источникам информации по уходу за карликовыми деревьями у семьи
не было. Советы агронома по обрезке деревьев, а также по борьбе с вредителями были полезными и
результативными. Семья стала получать стабильный доход от продажи яблок, а также от реализации
молока и мяса.

« ДАЖЕ ПОРОЙ НЕ ВЕРИТСЯ, ЧТО
ТАКОЕ БЫВАЕТ. МЫ РАНЬШЕ ЖИЛИ
В САМАННОЙ КОМНАТУШКЕ, А СЕЙЧАС У
НАС ОГРОМНЫЙ ДОМ!»
Благодаря правильному планированию семейных расходов, знаниям по финансовой грамотности,
которые супруги также получили в Компаньоне, они смогли увеличить свой доход и построили
добротный дом.
«Даже порой не верится, что такое бывает. Мы раньше жили в саманной комнатушке, а сейчас у
нас огромный дом!» - гордо показывая новый дом, рассказывает Беризат. «Часть денег от последнего кредита ветеринар Компаньона посоветовал направить на покупку ульев и заняться пчеловодством», - дополняет рассказ жены Мелис. «Я решил попробовать и купил улья, которые поставил
в саду. И для опыления сада полезно, и мёд вкусный получился. Мёд едим всей семьёй и продаём
на рынке по 350 сомов за килограмм. В итоге меня так увлёк процесс разведения пчёл, что хочу
расширить новый бизнес и купить ещё десять ульев», - рассказал о своих планах на будущее Мелис.

ИСТОРИИ УСПЕХА НАШИХ К ЛИЕНТОВ
Клеточное содержание кур-несушек — пример успешного бизнеса
Сыдыгалиева Назгуль — успешный предприниматель и мать пятерых детей. Свой первый кредит она взяла в Компаньоне ещё в 2005 году для оплаты
учебы старшего ребенка в ВУЗе. В 2015 году Назгуль узнала о том, что специалисты Компаньона предоставляют реальные бизнес-планы по открытию
или развитию небольшого бизнеса, а также техническую поддержку и рекомендации агрономов и ветеринаров. Кроме этого, начинающим бизнесменам
предоставляется вся информация о поставщиках необходимого оборудования и племенных хозяйствах.

«КАК ПОСТРОИТЬ КУРЯТНИК, КАКИЕ ВИДЫ КУР-НЕСУШЕК СЛЕДУЕТ РАЗВОДИТЬ
ДЛЯ ПОЛУЧЕНИЯ МАКСИМАЛЬНОГО ДОХОДА, В ЧЁМ ПРЕИМУЩЕСТВО РАЗВЕДЕНИЯ КУР В КЛЕТКАХ - ВСЕ ЭТО Я УЗНАЛА ОТ СПЕЦИАЛИСТОВ КОМПАНЬОНА»
«Как построить курятник, какие виды кур-несушек следует разводить для получения максимального дохода, в чём преимущество разведения кур в клетках - все это я узнала от специалистов Компаньона», - рассказывает свою историю успеха Назгуль. «Немного подумав, я решила попробовать начать
бизнес и взяла кредит. Я не ошиблась. Уже на четвёртый месяц куры стали нести яйца. В день я собираю по 300 штук и сама продаю на местном рынке
или сдаю в ближайшие магазины. Часть яиц мы также сдаём в крупные магазины столицы. Мне очень помогают в хозяйстве младшие сыновья. Я мечтала
поставить всех пятерых детей на ноги, дать им достойное образование. Моя мечта реализовалась благодаря хорошему бизнес плану и дополнительному
доходу от клеточного содержания кур-несушек», - поделилась своим успехом сильная женщина.
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ИСТОРИИ УСПЕХА НАШИХ К ЛИЕНТОВ
Разведение овец на примере домашней мини-фермы
Жаздагул Борбукова — клиент Компаньона, предприниматель и мама троих детей. Когда семье стало не хватать средств, Жаздагул решила заняться откормом и выращиванием овец. Сарай у семьи уже был, нужны были инвестиции на покупку скота. В 2014 году муж узнал от коллег, что Компаньон дает
не только финансовые средства, но и консультации по животноводству на безвозмездной основе. Жаздагул обратилась к специалистам Компаньона,
которые помогли расчитать возможные затраты на покупку скота и корм, а также предоставили информацию о рационе кормления, о правилах подготовки животных к пастбищному содержанию. Увидев серьёзный подход специалистов Компаньона, Жаздагул взяла кредит на покупку овец.

«Я ГОРЖУСЬ ТЕМ, ЧТО МНЕ ВСЕГО ТРИДЦАТЬ ЛЕТ, А Я ВЕДУ
ПУСТЬ НЕ БОЛЬШОЙ, НО ВСЕ ЖЕ СОБСТВЕННЫЙ БИЗНЕС,
КОТОРЫЙ ПРИНОСИТ СТАБИЛЬНЫЙ ДОХОД»
Через год овцы дали приплод, стадо увеличилось практически вдвое. Женщина к тому времени уже выплатила первый кредит и в 2015 году взяла повторный кредит на расширение бизнеса. В 2016 году Жаздагул , прислушавшись к совету ветеринара Компаньона, готовит стадо к отправке на дальние
пастбища.
«Я горжусь тем, что мне всего тридцать лет, а я веду пусть не большой, но все же собственный бизнес, который приносит стабильный доход. Кроме этого,
дети приучаются к труду с малых лет. Старший сын, которому исполнилось двенадцать лет, уже помогает мне кормить овец», - улыбаясь, рассказывает
Жаздагул.
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ИСТОРИИ УСПЕХА НАШИХ К ЛИЕНТОВ
Абрикосовый сад - красиво и прибыльно!
В 2008 году экономист по образованию Алыбаев Дуйшонбу купил землю и посадил сад из абрикосовых деревьев. Прошло несколько лет, а сад не плодоносил и не приносил фермеру ожидаемого
дохода. Спросить совета о том, как сажать, как поливать и как ухаживать за садом, было не у кого.
Когда в 2015 году специалистами Компаньона была сформирована группа из 15 фермеров для проведения годового обучения на бесплатной основе, Дуйшонбу с удовольствием воспользовался этой
возможностью и регулярно посещал инициативные тренинги в полевой школе фермеров. Агроном
Компаньона давал полезные теоретические уроки и проводил практические занятия в садах у каждого участника тренинга по очереди. На занятиях разобрали также ошибки, которые допустил Дуйшонбу, когда посадил свой сад. На каменистой земле он сделал слишком маленькие лунки, деревья
посадил очень близко друг к другу, саженцы купил на базаре в Чуйской области. Саженцы были не
адаптированы к местным условиям.

« ДУМАЮ, ЧТО СЛЕДУЮЩИЙ КРЕДИТ
БУДУ ИСПОЛЬЗОВАТЬ НА ПОКУПКУ ОБОРУДОВАНИЯ ДЛЯ КАПЕЛЬНОГО ОРОШЕНИЯ, КОТОРОЕ ПОЗВОЛИТ СНИЗИТЬ
РАСХОД ВОДЫ, ТРУДОЗАТРАТЫ И УЛУЧШИТЬ КАЧЕСТВО И КОЛИЧЕСТВО МОЕГО
УРОЖАЯ»
Получив новые знания по уходу за садом, навыки обрезки и прививки деревьев, фермер взял свой
первый кредит в Компаньоне и купил еще 50 саженцев из местного питомника. Успешно погасив
первый кредит, Дуйшонбу в 2016 году смело вложил заемные инвестиции в посадку следующей
партии деревьев (40 штук). Теперь у него на участке растут не только абрикосовые деревья, но и
яблони, черешня, смородина и малина. Землю возделывают всей семьей. Также Дуйшонбу привлек к
работе семью брата, обеспечив им возможность получения дополнительного заработка.
« Думаю, что следующий кредит буду использовать на покупку оборудования для капельного орошения, которое позволит снизить расход воды, трудозатраты и улучшить качество и количество моего урожая», - тщательно все распланировав, решил бизнесмен.
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ИСТОРИИ УСПЕХА НАШИХ К ЛИЕНТОВ
Система капельного орошения: экономно и удобно!
Семья Сыдыгалиева Абдиля всегда занималась скотоводством: разведением лошадей, коров и овец.
Но если в молодости все давалась легко, то с возрастом управлять хозяйством стало сложнее. Старший брат рассказал Абдилю о том, что Компаньон проводит бесплатные тренинги по сельскому
хозяйству и финансирует бизнес.
«В 2011 году я впервые посетил тренинг по уходу за садом и познакомился с агрономом Компаньона»,
- начинает свой рассказ Сыдыгалиев Абдил. «Тренинги проходили очень интересно, все объяснялось
простым и доступным языком Раньше я даже никогда не интересовался земледелием. Но агроном
Компаньона так увлечённо рассказывал о выгоде садоводства, о разнообразии сортов деревьев, о
пользе здорового питания для детей и внуков, о преимуществах новых технологий, таких как системы
капельного орошения, что я загорелся мечтой иметь собственный сад», - вспоминает Абдил.

«В 2011 ГОДУ Я ВПЕРВЫЕ ПОСЕТИЛ ТРЕНИНГ
ПО УХОДУ ЗА САДОМ И ПОЗНАКОМИЛСЯ С
АГРОНОМОМ КОМПАНЬОНА»
В 2014 году будущий садовод продал часть животных, а также взял кредит. Половину денег потратил на постройку забора для участка, чтобы защитить саженцы от скота. Другая половина денежных
средств пошла на культивацию земли, бурление скважины, покупку и установку системы капельного
орошения с водосборником объемом в 6 тонн. Следуя советам агронома, фермер купил саженцы.
Сейчас у семьи Абдиля свой сад: на одном гектаре земли посажено 500 молодых яблоневых деревьев. Буквально через пару лет уже будет первый урожай и первый доход!
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ЗАКРЫТОЕ АКЦИОНЕРНОЕ ОБЩЕСТВО «БАНК КОМПАНЬОН»
(РАНЕЕ – ЗАКРЫТОЕ АКЦИОНЕРНОЕ ОБЩЕСТВО МФК «ФИНАНСОВАЯ ГРУППА КОМПАНЬОН»)
КОНСОЛИДИРОВАННАЯ ФИНАНСОВАЯ ОТЧЕТНОСТЬ И ОТЧЕТ НЕЗАВИСИМОГО АУДИТОРА
ЗА ГОД, ЗАКОНЧИВШИЙСЯ 31 ДЕКАБРЯ 2015 ГОДА

ПОДТВЕРЖДЕНИЕ РУКОВОДСТВА ОБ ОТВЕТСТВЕННОСТИ ЗА ПОДГОТОВКУ И УТВЕРЖДЕНИЕ КОНСОЛИДИРОВАННОЙ ФИНАНСОВОЙ ОТЧЕТНОСТИ
ЗА ГОД, ЗАКОНЧИВШИЙСЯ 31 ДЕКАБРЯ 2015 ГОДА

Руководство отвечает за подготовку консолидированной финансовой отчетности, достоверно отражающей во всех существенных аспектах финансовое положение закрытого акционерного общества «Банк Компаньон» (ранее – ЗАО МФК «Финансовая Группа Компаньон») и его дочерних компаний (далее – «Группа»)
по состоянию на 31 декабря 2015 года, а также результаты его деятельности, движение денежных средств и изменения в капитале за год, закончившийся на
указанную дату, в соответствии с Международными стандартами финансовой отчетности (далее – «МСФО»).
При подготовке консолидированной финансовой отчетности руководство
несет ответственность за:
• обеспечение правильного выбора и применение принципов учетной политики;
• представление информации, в т.ч. данных об учетной политике, в форме, обеспечивающей уместность, достоверность, сопоставимость и понятность такой
информации;
• раскрытие дополнительной информации в случаях, когда выполнения требований МСФО оказывается недостаточно для понимания пользователями отчетно
сти того воздействия, которое те или иные сделки, а также прочие события или условия оказывают на консолидированное финансовое положение и финан
совые результаты деятельности Группы; и
• оценку способности Группы продолжать деятельность в обозримом будущем.
Руководство также несет ответственность за:
• разработку, внедрение и поддержание эффективной и надежной системы внутреннего контроля Группы;
• ведение учета в форме, позволяющей раскрыть и объяснить сделки Группы, а также предоставить на любую дату информацию достаточной точности о кон
солидированном финансовом положении Группы и обеспечить соответствие консолидированной финансовой отчетности требованиям МСФО;
• ведение бухгалтерского учета в соответствии с законодательством Кыргызской Республики;
• принятие всех разумно возможных мер по обеспечению сохранности активов Группы; и
• выявление и предотвращение фактов финансовых и прочих злоупотреблений.
Консолидированная финансовая отчетность Группы за год, закончившийся 31 декабря 2015 года, была утверждена руководством Группы 3 марта 2016 года.

От имени Руководства:
Уланбек Термечиков
Председатель Правления

Гульбара Джакыпбаева
Главный бухгалтер

3 марта 2016 года
г. Бишкек
Кыргызская Республика
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ЗАКРЫТОЕ АКЦИОНЕРНОЕ ОБЩЕСТВО «БАНК КОМПАНЬОН» (ранее – ЗАО МФК «Финансовая Группа Компаньон»)
КОНСОЛИДИРОВАННЫЙ ОТЧЕТ О ПРИБЫЛЯХ И УБЫТКАХ И ПРОЧЕМ СОВОКУПНОМ ДОХОДЕ ЗА ГОД, ЗАКОНЧИВШИЙСЯ 31 ДЕКАБРЯ 2015 ГОДА
(в тысячах кыргызских сом)

ГОД,
ЗАКОНЧИВШИЙСЯ
31 ДЕКАБРЯ
2015 ГОДА

ГОД,
ЗАКОНЧИВШИЙСЯ
31 ДЕКАБРЯ
2014 ГОДА

(493.863)

(416.562)

1.178.012

1.047.339

(87.706)

(61.806)

1.090.306
(298.774)

985.533
(249.751)

26.684

12.829

–

203

(5.183)

(5.565)

16.433

14.063

(260.840)

(228.221)

829.466

757.312

(786.026)

(682.406)

43.440

74.906

(7.659)

(13.118)

35,781
35,781

61,788
61,788

-

-

35,781
-

61,788

ПРИХОДЯЩИЙСЯ НА:

35,781

61,788

- акционеров банка

35,781

61,788

-

-

35,781

61,788

ПРИМЕЧАНИЯ

Процентные доходы

7, 23

Процентные расходы

7

ЧИСТЫЙ ПРОЦЕНТНЫЙ ДОХОД ДО ФОРМИРОВАНИЯ РЕЗЕРВА ПОД
ОБЕСЦЕНЕНИЕ АКТИВОВ, ПО КОТОРЫМ НАЧИСЛЯЮТСЯ ПРОЦЕНТЫ
Формирование резерва под обесценение активов,
по которым начисляются проценты
ЧИСТЫЙ ПРОЦЕНТНЫЙ ДОХОД
Чистый убыток по финансовым активам, отражаемым
по справедливой стоимости через прибыль или убыток
Чистый доход от курсовой разницы

8

9

Восстановление резерва под обесценение прочих активов
Расходы по услугам и комиссии
Чистые прочие доходы

23

ЧИСТЫЕ НЕПРОЦЕНТНЫЕ РАСХОДЫ
ОПЕРАЦИОННЫЕ ДОХОДЫ
ОПЕРАЦИОННЫЕ РАСХОДЫ

10

ПРИБЫЛЬ ДО НАЛОГООБЛОЖЕНИЯ
Расход по налогу на прибыль

11

ЧИСТАЯ ПРИБЫЛЬ

ПРИХОДЯЩАЯСЯ НА:

- акционеров банка

- неконтролирующие доли участка
ПРОЧИЙ СОВОКУПНЫЙ ДОХОД

1.671.875

1.463.901

-

ИТОГО СОВОКУПНЫЙ ДОХОД

- неконтролирующие доли участка
Подписано и утверждено к выпуску от имени Правления Банка:
Уланбек Термечиков
Председатель Правления

3 марта 2016 года
г. Бишкек, Кыргызская Республика

Гульбара Джакыпбаева
Главный бухгалтер

Примечания на стр. 6-57 являются неотъемлемой частью настоящей консолидированной финансовой отчетности.
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ЗАКРЫТОЕ АКЦИОНЕРНОЕ ОБЩЕСТВО «БАНК КОМПАНЬОН» (ранее – ЗАО МФК «Финансовая Группа Компаньон»)
КОНСОЛИДИРОВАННЫЙ ОТЧЕТ О ФИНАНСОВОМ ПОЛОЖЕНИИ ПО СОСТОЯНИЮ НА 31 ДЕКАБРЯ 2015 ГОДА
(в тысячах кыргызских сом)

Примечания

31 декабря
2015 года

31 декабря
2014 года*

Средства в банках и прочих
финансовых институтах
Финансовые активы, отражаемые по справедливой стоимости через прибыль или убыток

12

1.317.656

645.692

15

443.700

453.254

Кредиты, предоставленные клиентам

13

4.101.038

4.475.121

Основные средства и нематериальные активы

14

342.700

321.264

Актив по отложенному налогу на прибыль

11

8.884

–

Прочие активы

16

51.219

52.256

6.265.197

5.947.587

АКТИВЫ

ИТОГО АКТИВЫ
ОБЯЗАТЕЛЬСТВА И КАПИТАЛ
ОБЯЗАТЕЛЬСТВА
Средства банков и прочих финансовых институтов

17

4.584.664

4.908.046

Субординированный долг

19

62.796

47.501

11.359

1.246

Обязательства по текущему налогу на прибыль
Обязательства по отложенному налогу на прибыль

11

–

1.570

Прочие обязательства

18

275.909

214.778

4.934.728

5.173.141

1.000.616

650.400

Уставный капитал

177.150

–

Эмиссионный доход

152.701

124.044

1.330.467

774.444

2

2

Итого капитал

1.330.469

774.446

ИТОГО ОБЯЗАТЕЛЬСТВА И КАПИТАЛ

6.265.197

5.947.587

Итого обязательства
КАПИТАЛ

21

Нераспределенная прибыль
Итого капитал, относящийся к акционерам материнской организации
Неконтролирующие доли владения

* Некоторые суммы, приведенные в данном отчете, не соответствуют суммам в консолидированной финансовой отчетности за 2014 год, поскольку
отражают переклассификации, подробная информация о которых приводится в Примечании 6.

97

ЗАКРЫТОЕ АКЦИОНЕРНОЕ ОБЩЕСТВО «БАНК КОМПАНЬОН» (ранее – ЗАО МФК «Финансовая Группа Компаньон»)
КОНСОЛИДИРОВАННЫЙ ОТЧЕТ ОБ ИЗМЕНЕНИЯХ КАПИТАЛА ЗА ГОД, ЗАКОНЧИВШИЙСЯ 31 ДЕКАБРЯ 2015 ГОДА
(в тысячах кыргызских сом)

Уставный капитал

Эмиссионный доход

Нераспределенная
прибыль

Неконтролирующие
доли владения

Итого капитал

650.400

–

75.604

2

726.006

Прибыль за год

–

–

61.788

–

61.788

Прочий совокупный
доход за год

–

–

–

–

–

ИТОГО СОВОКУПНЫЙ
ДОХОД

–

–

61.788

–

61.788

Объявленные
дивиденды
(Примечание 21)

–

–

(13.348)

–

(13.348)

650.400

–

124.044

2

774.446

Прибыль за год

–

–

35.781

–

35.781

Прочий совокупный
доход за год

–

–

–

–

–

ИТОГО СОВОКУПНЫЙ
ДОХОД

–

–

35.781

–

35.781

Объявленные
дивиденды
(Примечание 21)

–

–

(7.124)

–

(7.124)

Выпуск
простых акций
(Примечание 21)

350.216

177.150

–

–

527.366

1.000.616

177.150

152.701

2

1.330.469

31 декабря 2013 года

31 декабря 2014 года

31 декабря 2015 года

Подписано и утверждено к выпуску от имени Правления Банка:

Уланбек Термечиков
Председатель Правления

Гульбара Джакыпбаева
Главный бухгалтер

3 марта 2016 года
г. Бишкек, Кыргызская Республика
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ЗАКРЫТОЕ АКЦИОНЕРНОЕ ОБЩЕСТВО «БАНК КОМПАНЬОН» (ранее – ЗАО МФК «Финансовая Группа Компаньон»)
КОНСОЛИДИРОВАННЫЙ ОТЧЕТ О ДВИЖЕНИИ ДЕНЕЖНЫХ СРЕДСТВ ЗА ГОД, ЗАКОНЧИВШИЙСЯ 31 ДЕКАБРЯ 2015 ГОДА
(в тысячах кыргызских сом)

Примечания

Год, закончившийся
31 декабря
2015 года

Год, закончившийся
31 декабря
2014 года*

43.440

74.906

8

87.706

61.806

8

–

(203)

51.770

34.108

(31.687)

(12.829)

11.555

(4.366)

38.176

38.570

Убыток от выбытия основных средств и нематериальных активов

443

1.568

Чистое изменение начисленных процентных доходов и расходов

(4.624)

(54.871)

196.779

138.689

1.080

8.886

Кредиты, предоставленные клиентам

304.884

(655.810)

Финансовые активы, отражаемые по справедливой стоимости через прибыль
или убыток
Прочие активы

680.031

358.723

6.868

6.730

8.676

(10.998)

Приток/(отток) денежных средств от операционной деятельности до налогообложения
Налог на прибыль уплаченный

1.198.318

(153.780)

(8.000)

(5.901)

Чистый приток/(отток) денежных средств от операционной деятельности

1.190.318

(159.681)

ДВИЖЕНИЕ ДЕНЕЖНЫХ СРЕДСТВ
ОТ ОПЕРАЦИОННОЙ ДЕЯТЕЛЬНОСТИ
Прибыль до налогообложения
Корректировки:
Формирование резерва под обесценение активов, по которым начисляются
проценты
Восстановление резерва под обесценение прочих операций
Начисленные операционные расходы
Нереализованный доход от курсовой разницы
Чистый нереализованный убыток/(доход) от финансовых активов, отражаемых
по справедливой стоимости через прибыль или убыток
Износ и амортизация

Движение денежных средств от операционной деятельности до изменения операционных активов и обязательств
Изменение операционных активов и обязательств
(Увеличение)/уменьшение операционных активов:
Средства в банках и прочих финансовых институтах

Уменьшение/(увеличение) операционных обязательств:
Прочие обязательства
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ЗАКРЫТОЕ АКЦИОНЕРНОЕ ОБЩЕСТВО «БАНК КОМПАНЬОН» (ранее – ЗАО МФК «Финансовая Группа Компаньон»)
КОНСОЛИДИРОВАННЫЙ ОТЧЕТ О ДВИЖЕНИИ ДЕНЕЖНЫХ СРЕДСТВ ЗА ГОД, ЗАКОНЧИВШИЙСЯ 31 ДЕКАБРЯ 2015 ГОДА
(в тысячах кыргызских сом)

Примечания

ДВИЖЕНИЕ ДЕНЕЖНЫХ СРЕДСТВ ОТ ИНВЕСТИЦИОННОЙ ДЕЯТЕЛЬНОСТИ

Год, закончившийся
31 декабря
2015 года

Год, закончившийся
31 декабря
2014 года*

–

1.844

(65.887)

(42.967)

649.714

2.620.291

(1.770.194)

(2.034.476)

(65.887)

Приобретение основных средств и нематериальных активов
Поступления от реализации основных средств

(44.811)

Чистый отток денежных средств от инвестиционной деятельности
ДВИЖЕНИЕ ДЕНЕЖНЫХ СРЕДСТВ ОТ ФИНАНСОВОЙ ДЕЯТЕЛЬНОСТИ
Поступления средств банков и прочих финансовых институтов
Погашение средств банков и прочих финансовых институтов
Поступление от увеличения уставного капитала

21

527.366

–

Дивиденды выплаченные

21

(7.124)

(14.089)

(600.238)

571.726

147.352

46.413

671.545

415.491

12

626.850

211.359

12

1.298.395

626.850

Чистый (отток)/приток денежных средств от финансовой деятельности
Влияния изменения курса иностранной валюты
на денежные средства и их эквиваленты
ЧИСТОЕ УВЕЛИЧЕНИЕ ДЕНЕЖНЫХ СРЕДСТВ И ИХ ЭКВИВАЛЕНТОВ
ДЕНЕЖНЫЕ СРЕДСТВА И ИХ ЭКВИВАЛЕНТЫ,
НА НАЧАЛО ГОДА
ДЕНЕЖНЫЕ СРЕДСТВА И ИХ ЭКВИВАЛЕНТЫ,
НА КОНЕЦ ГОДА

*Некоторые суммы, приведенные в данном отчете, не соответствуют суммам в консолидированной финансовой отчетности за 2014 год, поскольку отражают переклассификации, подробная информация о которых приводится в Примечании 6.

Сумма процентов, уплаченных и полученных Группой за год, закончившийся 31 декабря 2015 года, составила 478.479 тысяч сом и 1.668.020 тысяч сом,
соответственно (2014 год: 398.523 тысяч сом и 1.455.477 тысяч сом, соответственно).
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ЗАКРЫТОЕ АКЦИОНЕРНОЕ ОБЩЕСТВО «БАНК КОМПАНЬОН (ранее – ЗАО МФК «Финансовая Группа Компаньон»)
ПРИМЕЧАНИЯ К КОНСОЛИДИРОВАННОЙ ФИНАНСОВОЙ ОТЧЕТНОСТИ (ПРОДОЛЖЕНИЕ)ЗА ГОД, ЗАКОНЧИВШИЙСЯ 31 ДЕКАБРЯ 2015 ГОДА
(в тысячах кыргызских сом)

6. ПЕРЕКЛАССФИКАЦИИ
В консолидированной финансовой отчетности по состоянию на 31 декабря 2014 года и за год, закончившийся на эту дату, были произведены некоторые переклассификации для приведения ее в соответствие с формой представления отчетности на 31 декабря 2015 года и за год, закончившийся на эту
дату.

Примечание

Согласно
предыдущему
отчету

ОТЧЕТ О ФИНАНСОВОМ ПОЛОЖЕНИИ

Сумма
переклассификации

Скорректированная сумма

Кредиты, предоставленные клиентам

[1]

4.556.346

(81.225)

4.475.121

Прочие активы

[2]

69.210

(16.954)

52.256

6.045.766

(98.179)

5.947.587

ИТОГО АКТИВЫ
Средства банков и прочих финансовых институтов

[2]

4.925.000

(16.954)

4.908.046

Прочие обязательства

[1]

296.003

(81.225)

214.778

Обязательства по налогу на прибыль

[3]

2.816

(2.816)

–

Обязательство по отложенному налогу на прибыль

[3]

–

1.570

1.570

Обязательство по текущему налогу на прибыль

[3]

–

1.246

1.246

Итого обязательства

5.271.320

(98.179)

5.173.141

ИТОГО ОБЯЗАТЕЛЬСТВА И КАПИТАЛ

6.045.766

(98.179)

5.947.587

ОТЧЕТ О ДВИЖЕНИИ ДЕНЕЖНЫХ СРЕДСТВ
Движение денежных средств от операционной деятельности
Увеличение кредитов, предоставленных клиентам

[1]

(737.036)

81.225

(655.811)

(Увеличение)/уменьшение прочих активов

[2]

(10.224)

16.954

6.730

Увеличение/(уменьшение) прочих обязательств

[1]

70.228

(81.225)

(10.997)

Отток денежных средств от операционной деятельности до налогообложения

[2]

(170.735)

16.954

(153.781)

(176.636)

16.954

(159.682)

Чистый отток денежных средств от операционной деятельности
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Примечание

Согласно
предыдущему
отчету

Сумма
переклассификации

Скорректированная сумма

[2]

2.637.245

(16.954)

2.620.291

588.680

(16.954)

571.726

Движение денежных средств от финансовой деятельности
Поступления от средств банков и прочих финансовых институтов
Чистый приток денежных средств от финансовой деятельности
Примечания:

[1] Дисконт по кредитам, предоставленным клиентам, был перенесен в статью «кредиты, предоставленные клиентам».
[2] Дисконт по средствам банков и прочих финансовых институтов, был перенесен в статью «средства банков и прочих финансовых институтов».
[3] Обязательства по текущему и отложенному налогу на прибыль были выделены в отдельные статьи отчета о финансовом положении.
Руководство считает, что отсутствует какая-либо необходимость представлять третий консолидированный отчет о финансовом положении и соответствующие примечания, и отсутствие этой информации не считается существенным упущением.
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